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IT is vot possible that men engaged in political
fife in the ‘mother country, should attend to
every event which interests or even agitates the
feelings of their couhtrymen in distant colonies R
and nothing ‘can be’ more ill-judged than to
clamour' for attention to remote 'tra'ﬁsactions,
when ‘they ‘are ‘not of high importance ; but

busy as the political world is, ‘and small ‘as djs.

- tant objects must ,natu'ra,lly appear to'it, it is

ne‘V’efdisp()Séd" to paS‘s*Ov’Cr"an'y‘ remarkable
examples of oppression and injustice, without
severe scrutiny.  However distant the countr v

in'which-ah Englishman has suffered or perpe-

trated tyranhy,“there‘ is.the fairest disposition at

home, toi', hear and to redress the Wi'ohg".;‘ e

It may be hoped then; that this narrative will

not bé wholly ‘overlooked ; and that those whose
B
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suﬁcrmgs it relates, will meet with favour and
Srotection from thatnumerous class whoseaver-

sion to the abuse of power makes them always

ready to advocate the cause of the oppressed.

It is scarcely possible ‘to suppose, that those
civil rights Whlch are~the birth-right of an
Englishman, ‘can be maintdined in our colonies
in the same state of purity they are enjoyed at
Lorne. The immensity of the distance, and the
1mpossxblhty of immediate appeal to the wisdom
of “superior tribunals in the mother country,\
necessarily’ confer upon the supreme:powerin
our remote dependencies a greater share of au-
thonty ‘than is deemed compatible with the
exxstence of civil liberty athome. Butthough
‘our colonists have not all our rights, they have
some, and in‘proportion as they.are few, they
become more important, being naturally such
‘as-are barely sufﬁcxem; to guard the distant sub..

m qppression.- e g _
Jecjifl:gnostp}:ther securmes agamst the oppres-
‘sive hand 'of ‘pewer in our East India  settle-
“ménts, the establishment of ‘trial by Jjury was
“many years ago an ‘anxious object :with: some
-of ‘thewisest-of -our- Yegislators ; by them; it
was regarded ds &'yeans of teachmg the native
a,more “perfect systen - of justice,- -whilst it:gave
“tothe resident’ ‘the "bengfit‘of - these lﬁws 1o
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which he had been accustomed, and afforded
him the best shelter agamst the possible excess
of his governors. A
The generous and humane motives that ac-
tuated - parliament, as well as its wisdom in
extending the sphere of trial by jury, was unis
versally admitted, and the. benefits that have
practlcally ensued, have never yet been called
it question: - Indeed 'nothing can appear more
beneficial than the introduction of such an msn-
tution in our eastern dominions : it not oniy
‘offers the atonement of civilization for. the Vio-
lence of conquest; but it sends the colonist
abrodd with a: more cheerful confidence in.his
destiny, and leaves his friends and kmdred, at
shethe with the comfortable certainty  that he
~will a:lwajs ‘be. sheltered ﬁom .despotism. and
: mJustice ' . . .
- But 'to secure. these advantages, an appeal
to a jury ought, as in the mother countay, al-
-~ways to be open; no man should be threatened
by:the government for resorting to it;—no man
-should be banished or reduced to certain poverty
-for having made it. -——TheJurles to whom that
-appeal has beeo made,should, when. they dqcrde,
be protected: in life; fortune, and charaqteg ==
“The mﬂb»nce government may have over them,
"%hould never be . wantonly exerted. for. the per-
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‘version of justice ;—far less should the eventual

want of success. of such unwarrantable inter-

ference lead to the vindictive punishment of

those it has in vain attempted to mislead. How

far these obvious feelings have been respected
»ih the course of ‘the prosecutions that have

lately taken place at Madras, it is the business
of the present short narrative to exhibit, - .
A few years ago, when it was publicl y'»knqwtn
that an adjustmentof the debts of the late nabob
of Carnatic wasabout to take place, avery con-

siderable amount of nabob’s bonds appeared in .

the market at Madras, and many of them were
daily hawked about at much lower prices than

paperof the same denomination was sold for, be-"

fore it was known that any arrangement .of this
d‘ebt” was to take place. It wasthenreasonably
gﬁspe”cted, and it has since been proved, that
thedurbar servants were principally concerned
m “th’e fabrication of these s puri,ous*bonds,; they
ha;ri_ng' enjoyed a greater facility of givingco-
lour to their claims, by connecting : them with
the real transactlons, in the. 1ec0rds to whmh

‘they had free access.

Roya Reddy Row, ‘Dewauny Pelshc.u aud-
head ‘Marhatta Sherestadar .to the. present na-

" bob Azeem ul anlah was sald to be: deeply

engaged in these forgenes,but 1o, commumcatmm
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was. made to. government on this subject; till
the beginning of the year 1808. : The infor-
mation then laid before them, was referred to
thelr advocate—general ‘Mr. - Anstruther—~cer-
tainly not - the person to whose decision any
charge aﬂ'ectmg the character of Roya . Reddy

‘Row. ought in preference to have been ‘sub-

mlttedk as it was generally known that he, to-
gether with the company’s solicitor, Mr. Orme,

-and some other gentlemen, had speculated very

deeply innabob’s bonds, purchased from Reddy
Row,: or by his recommendation. - In' conge-

; quence of the advocate-general’s advice, a com-
.mittee was appomted to investigate the truth

of this mformatlon of which ke was' himseélf

.the chairman ;, ‘and the company’s solicitor the
;secretary ‘As might be expected, the conduct
‘of this enqulry was left chiefly to the two gen-
‘tlemen of the law, and the result of course was,

that the. charges against Roya' Reddy ROW,
were Judged to be. wholly false and mahczous
- About this tlme, the commissioners appointed

: for investigating the Carnatic debts at Madras,

began'to publish the claims preferred to them
and the ﬁrst advernsed for mvestigatton, 'ﬂw’ugh

by no means the firstin the order- gwen’{ ln,'Was
“one on the part of Roya. Reddy Row, ‘dpon‘‘a
‘bond: purporting to-be éxecuted by Omdut+il

Omrah, in favour of Gopal Row, dated 26th
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July, 1’798 for 38,500 ‘pagollas i—the simé
which has since been the subJect of “one crimi-
nal trial, and has gwen rise to' two' others,
which was well known,to be the pmperty of
the advocate-general and other gentlemén cord
cerned with him. The claim’ was" chalfenged
by Mr. Wﬂ]mm nght the ngent for Avada-
num Poupiah Brammy " The commissioners
¢xamined witnesses for and against ity diridg
whlch proceedmgs 0 strong a dxspdsIﬁOn was

»dlsplayed to support “the bond, that Poupiali

was advised to subject its vahdlty to thé consi-

Tderatlon of a much higher and a" more pubf i

ktnbunal and 1mmedlafe]y commenced a prOSe-

cution agamst Roya Reddy Row, for a ‘con=

pnacy and forgery. Thxs appeal to fhe su-

penor wxsdom, and the more perfect‘ 1mpar~ :

tiality of a court of Justlce, became the mote
necessary from the enormlty of Reddy Rfow 8
‘to Tave proceeded from loans to the nabob “in
:the Tonth precedlng his death, and wher ‘he
Was known to be past recovel‘y * I the pfo-
é)erty of the real creditor was ever to'be de-
ended;, thls undoubtedly appeare& the time f‘oi’
domg' 1t Informat‘mns We‘re accoi‘dmgly lodged

" %iGee: Appemhx, Noi - 1 cdntammg a ! inemorandum “df
.claims preferred by Reddy Row, before the commissigners.
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before. the sitting magistrate, and the {wo_ac-
cused persons were held to ball to take. them
trial at the ensumg quatter sessions.

_The commissioners were 1mmedlately ap plxed
tq by the sitting maglstmte, for the produc-
uon of the bond at the pubhc oﬂice 5 when in
reply they mtxmated that - they beheved the
prosecution: to be the effect of a conspiracy,
agamst Roya Reddy Row, of which Avada-
num. Pouplah Braminy, was the head, statmg,
that, they had recommended it to the. governor
in, councﬂ to direct his law oﬁivers to mspect
the;l: proc(;edmgs, thh a viewto a prosecutmw
against Poup;ah and others for a conspiracy
and perjury ; though in fact thxs menaced‘ pi'o-
secutmn never took place.

Thls attempt to obstluct the trlal of Reddy
Row, _was strongly supported by another of a
smula,r nature, wkuch however, ~was camed a
llttle fdnther. ‘ A few days ‘after the prosecu-
tion of Reddy Row was commenced informa-
t,mns were. brouvht before the magxstrates, by
the. law oiﬁcers, ctmg under the orders of go-
vernmeut agamst Poupmh and three othexs,
for a_conspiracy to_ forge a nabob s bonQ, of
w‘h'ch mtlmat,lon had been gwen by the: com~
missioners to the slttmg magistrate, at the time

they: gave notice of the.aforementioned intended
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prosecution, for a conspiracy and perjury. The
parties were held to bail. A bill of indictment
was found against them by the grand jury at
the October sessions. The indictment was
traversed by consent, and the trial lay over for
the J anuar‘y sessions, at ‘the commencen: ent of
which Pouplah died ; ‘but though ‘the other

three persons were forthcoming, no notice was

given by the law oiﬁeers of their gomg to
trial a«a.mst them.

A ‘third ‘session came on upon the 8th of-

May, when the Company’s solicitor gave no-

tice to the solicitor for the defendants, that go- -
vernment did not mean to prosecute  the indict-.
ment.  The parties were. aceordmgly broughtf

up, and their bail discharged.
If public Justlce had been the- obJect in v1ew,
in ‘preferring this ‘indictment, there was 1o

reason “why the law-officers should not hawe_

proceeded with the trial against the three sur-

vwmg defendants. ~Although one: of the par-i
ties was dead,the ends of j J ustice would have been

equally obta,med by the’ pumshment and convic-

tlon of the survwors Combmmg, therefore, the‘
abandonment of th;s procecutmn, w1th the abor-'v
tive ‘threats ‘of the other that has been already
c1‘.a'ced fhere can'be little doubt that there was'
no sermus ground for elther of them and that
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both wére adopted as tending to put a stop to
the: prosccutlon agamst Reddy Row, ifnot re»
sorted to for that express purpose..

“The means, howevex of thwartmg ﬂie opera-
tions’ ofJustlce ‘and of preventlng the meuted

' pumshment of RoyaReddy Row were not yet ex-
 hausted. The persons who deposed to the actual

fabrication of the bond, Arnachetta Row and
Beemah Row, had been conhdentml servants to
Roya Reddy Row, and as such had been employ-
ed by him in many of his criminal transactions,
It becametherefore oflmpmtance to Reddy Row,
as well on account of hisapproaching trial, as of
the other numerous forgerles that ke had commlt-
ted, to- incapacitate these men from appealmg
agamst him, Accordmgly informations were
sworn to by him, chdrgmv Arndchetta Row
and Beemah Row with perjury, aesngned upon
some small variance in their ev1dences a variance
that ought rather to ‘have induced a belief;than
a doubt of thexr testunony, and upon these in-
formatlons they were held to bail : and this pro-
secutlon was conducted by the law ofﬁcers of the
Company, actmwundex the orders of the o~ovem,-
ment, atthe recommendatlon of the commlssxonere
“Another eﬁ‘ect to be . ploduced by a pro-
secutlon of the w1tnesses by govemment
and which it is obvmus to every one the
least acquamted with the character of the na-
c
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tives of India, must have followed, was aﬁ’
intimidation and prevention of other perd
sons from coming forward as witnesses.  And
as almost all information regarding clainis
upon the nabobs, must be procured from nad
tives, it was evident that this measure would
frustrate all fair investigation, and leave the
fund for the payment of the real creditors at
the mercy of Reddy Row, and his creatures, the

Durbar servants, at least as far as the decision

of the commissioners in India could effect it.

~ Alarmed at the dangers with which their
interests seemed threatened, the bona’ fide cre-
ditors of the nabob of 'the Carnatic had
appointed a committee to wateh over the
interests of the fair creditors, and to represent to
government the pernicious effects’ the cause of
justice must sustain from their interference.
But instead of obtaining any protection, or éven
forbearance from government, the commﬂftee
“were accused of acts of wanton obstructmn to
‘the proceedmgs of the commissioners: they
‘were harshly reprimanded, and th reatened with
the severest effécts of publlc dlspleasure *The
information which they had given to’ govem-
ment concerning the deep interest the advocate
general must necessarily’ feel in the" protectﬁm

* See Correspondence betwixt ;the:C.ommmttee(ofrfalr Crea

ditors and the government of Madeas, . :AppendixNos. 2, 3,
4, 5, and 6.
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wf ‘R-:edd y Row was passed by unnoticed ;
their request to have a copy of his report
upon their letter was refused, and Mr. Roe-
buck, one ofthe committee, finding that thiswas
the only reward of his public spirit, withdrew
himself from all further concern in the business,

“In order to conduct the trial of Reddy Row,
it was necessary for the other members of the
committee, who determined to persevere, - to
procure from the commissioners several docu-
ments of which they had become possessed ‘in
their late investigation of the charges -against
Reddy Row. To an application from the so~
Hcitor for the prosecution for these documents,
a positive refusal was received,* nor could they -

‘be procured till they were ordered to be given

up bythe court, on which occasion the conduct
of the commissioners was stigmatised by one of
the judges on the. bench, as a scandalous ob-
struction of public justice. :
"As the approaching trials involved interests
of considerable extent, the greatest care was

very properl_y taken by the sheriff to select

persons for the grand jury, who were known

to have no kind of interest in claims upon the

Durbar ;. only sixteen were sworn, and of these

fifteen were .in the service of the . company.

* Appendu,No. 7.8,
_'} See the names of the Jjury, Appendix, No. 9,
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Their first act was to reject the bill against
Beemah Row, and Arnachetta Row, though it:
had been recommended by the commissioners;
advised by the law officers, and patronized by
government. Their next act was to find against.

Roya Reddy Row and Annunda Row that bill, -

which all these various powers had been actwe*
ly at work to defeat. ‘
‘The quarter sessions of oyer and terminer
opened on the 10th of October, and upon the
plea of the impending dispatch of the ships for
‘Europe, was immediately adjourned for fifteen
days, being the first time the court ever evin-
ced suchindulgent consideration for the con-
venience of the public, though the springand
autumn ships were generally dispatched about
the period the quarter sessions were held. It was
‘not therefore till the 10th of November the court
proceeded to the trial of Reddy Row and Annun-
daRow,against whom thebill had been found by
the grand jury. Inthis trial there were three is-
sues : viz. the justice of the claim upon which
the bond was alleged to be founded,—the
_presence of the deferidantand Annunda Row at
the Durbar on the 26th ‘of July; 1798, when'it

“was alleged “he had written it by ordér of the

Nabob —~ajid the actualfabrication of the bbnd
two years after the death of the Nabob. .
Against the justice of the clalm, a varleifj,t
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of circumstantial evidence was adduced on the
part of the prosecution. To prove the absence of
the defendant Annunda -Row,in July 1798,
eleven credlble unimpeached witnesses deposed
that he had resu}ed in the districts of Chillam-
brum and Manoorgudy from the year 1797, to
the month of May, 1800 ; three witnesses, ser-
vants of the late Colonel Banet, in whose office
at. the Durbar it was pretended that Annunda
Row had been employed, deposed that they
had never seen him there, although they were
in pretty constant attendance upon their master;
fourteen witnesses servants of the Durbar de-
posed - likewise that they had never seen hxm
there during the time in question ; and  the

‘thlrd point at issue was proved by Amachetta
‘Row and Beemah Row, who swore to the

actual fabrication of the bond some time in the
month of July, 1803, |

. On the part of the defence 1t was pretended
that the claim. arose out of a loan made in 1797
by Gopal Row to Anwar Ally Khanjrenter of

‘the Arcot district on account of the circar.
- On the part of the prosecution it was 'pxdv:éd
‘ that Anwar Ally Khan remamed in the renter-
sh;p only ﬁtty-seven days, that he ‘was then
‘turped out by the naboh, and that Hussa;m

ul Mul-k _the nabob’s brother, was appomted
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io it; that it was customary in the Na'bob's
country, when a renter was removed before the
expiration of the year,. for his successor to take
possession of all the accounts of the district,
and make up the account for the entire year,
as well of the manawement of his predecéssor
as-of hisown. That Hussam Ul Mulk accord-
ingly sent Syed Moortaza Hussam to take
possession of all the accounts of the dlstr'l'ct‘ of
Arcot upon the removal of Amiwar Ally Khan,
and the prosecutors offered, and more than
once importuned the court to be allowed to
produce those accounts in evidence to prove
that there was no trace in them whatever of such
loanmade by Gopal Row to Amwar Ally Khan
for-account of the Circar, nor for any other ac-
count.

~..'They also produced the two Serishtadars of
Hussam Ul Mulk, who made up the accounts
in order to prove them, but the chief' Jjustice

- ‘would neither admit the production of the ac-
‘count or receive the evidence of the Serishta-

dars. . Hussam Ul Mulk had himself been
summoned to produce the accounts, but he re-
fused to appear in court on the plea of ill
health, and in ‘excusing himself from obeymg
the: summons, he wrote a letter to the chief

- Justice, Sir. Thomas Strange, acquainting him

15

that he had sent the accounts of the district,
in which were included those of the manage-
ment of Anwar Ally Khan by his Serishtadars -
who. made. them up, in which there appeared
no entry of the loan of Gopal Row.*
Notwithstanding this the chief Jjustice per-
sgvered in refusing to recéive these accounts
in evidence, though if admitted they alone
would have completely destroyed the foun-
dation of Reddy Row’s claim. On the part of
the defence many documents were produced
;from the Dufiers in support of the claim ; and
some witnesses were brought to prove the ser-
vice of Annunda Row at the Durbar at the
tlme alleged, amongst these was Mr. John
‘Batley. It was also attempted. to discre-
dit and invalidate the testimony of Arna-
chetta Row and Beemah Row, by proving

the discordance of their ‘evidence upon former
occasions, their being guilty of perjury

was even presumed, from government’s having
ovdered them to be indicted; a circumstance

upon which great stress was laid, notwith-

standing the bills had not been found aga,mst

‘them by the grand jury.

Upon the cross-examination of the w1tnessas

ffor the defence, it appeared evident that the

* #See the Letter of HussamU1 Malk to Si Thomas Stran‘ge,

with a memorandum to serve as an explauation thereof.
Appendix, No. 10.
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custody 'of the dufters had beén very Iboéé’ij‘f
kept, and that Reddy Row had had too ﬁ‘ee:‘
access to them Upon the examination of the

commlssmners, it alsd came out, ﬁmt when the ‘»
dufters came into their charwe, some of them‘_

werc w1thout Iocks and keys ‘ and that after
kept by themselves but left to the care of theuj
servants' ‘

‘Exceépting Mr. Batley, none of the prmclpal
“servants of the Durbar proved the ‘service. of
Annunda Row at the time in’ questwn “and
partlcular]y Madaputy Tremal Row, a head

Serishtadar in the Dewaney department anda
witness that the defence relied upon greaﬂy,:
and t upon whose testimony the chief justice, in

his" summmfr up, laid particular emphasm,

positively swore that'he had never seen Annuii-

- da " Row in ‘Barrett’s office in the Durbai:

With regard’ to the attempt to prove the pecit--

niary transaction between Gopal Row and ‘the
Durbar, by means of copiés of receipts fromj
the house of Lautour and Co. which Reddy
Row pro&uced from the dufters, and by the

productlon of the books of Lautour and Co. in
evuience, as ‘the gentleman who was 4@ part-{
nér in the liotde at the time of the pretended
transaction, was'still at Madras, and not called

upon to prove it: it appeared to be so weak &
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defénce that the Chief Justice did. not even
notice it in his summmg up.-—And. it is somes
thing remarkahle that Mr. George Arbuthnot,
at present a partner in the house of Lautour
and Co. ‘who was examined in the investigation
before thecommissioners in suppoit of the claim,
should not have been called as a witness upon
the trial ; because if his testimony went at all
to the support of the claim upon the formet
occasion, it would have equally benefited the
defence upon the latter.

The defence was closed on the 28th of No-
Vember, when Mr. Marsh, council for the pro-
secutlon, replied,. and the Chief Justlcc Antis
mated to the Jjury that it would be necessary
for him to adjourn the court till the 30th,
that he mlght arrange, his notes for the sum-
mmo' up of the evidence. On Wednesday,
the 30th of November, the court ‘was again ad-
30umed till Friday the 2d of Decembe1 s.on
which day it was again adjourned to Moagigry
the 5th, On Monday it was once more adj ourpe;l
to Wednesday the 7th when the Chief Justice
came in prepared to sum up.the ev1dence bxg:
two of the jury beipg sick, the Cpurt was again
aﬁgpuxged il tl;e followmg da;y, and from :
that tle Fr uigy thq ch ofﬁNove;nlger, whex@ gfter
8. wmming upithat lasted sevenhoyrs and 3 half,
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the jury. retired, ‘and in about. tweniy minutes
returned a verdict of guilty.. e
~As the advooate-general rested the de~
fence chiefly on the Dufters, or.records of the
Durbar, it will be proper here to explain- how
they are kept. . All the accounts and transac~
tions of the Durbar are kept and recorded upon
narrow strips of paper about fifteen inches long
and four inches ‘wide: the papers relating to
the same- account or transaction loosely tacked
together by athread at the corner; so thaf no~
thing is easier than to withdraw, substitute and
interpolate papers : .in 2 word to falmfy and
fabricate them, to make them cou‘espond with

Ry spurious ¢ claim. - Nothing ean be more un-

like the records of European publlc ofﬁces, _am;l
thebooks of a merchant’s counting- hcuse, 1o
which the advecate- general always compmegl
them in point of wexo'ht and authenticity. . For

any one, the least. acquamted with_ busmess.a :

knows that: it is almost 1mposs1ble to falmfy
-a;merchant’s books without detection. - -,
It 18 1mportcmt also to observe, that the ChLef
Juatlce in hjs . summing- up . stated, “ that‘
“ the commlssmners being appmnted by the §p~
¢ preme goverpment, geting. underthe deed ofgq-
¢ venant executed by;the, E,gst Ipdla Comp;my,
e and the prlvate cxedltou of the ndbobs of the
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“ Carnatic,and sanctioned byact of parliament,
e o‘uight to have the exclusive cognisance of all
“‘matters connected with the claims of which
e they have the investigation; that he had his
“ doubts whether his majesty’s courtsof judica=
“tuare were competent to take cognisance of the
“forgery of a bond, which the commissioners
“ ?hhd' i’nve:s"ti‘gated and had judged to be a good
“‘one; and that whatever might be the verdict
ofthe jury, the commissioners were com petent,
“and it was their'bounden duty to recommend
¢ the'bond to the commissioners in England as &
““g'ood and just one, lf they in theu‘ Jucigment
“déeimied it to be 50.” BEREE R :
“T'he’prosecutors on'this trial had ever ¥y dxﬁ«
1¢“?lty t_o:contendi agamst', that “wéalth, power;
o’.ﬁdi’if’ffé‘l‘e'si:" ‘¢ould ‘oppose to them. The
W’éa]th of Reddy Row ‘iﬁas""pi'ofhsel y scattered
""*‘s“uboi'il'ihé"Withe"'s'sés' “The power of govern-
aiént s Was avovvedly exercised in the defenceof
the] prlsoners as was the influence of ‘the nabob
and of the commlssxoners, the effécts of whick
upon some of the w1tnesses, was but tdo visible
duf*mv the trial. "To the" prosecutors every
il ‘was refused 5by ‘the commissictiérs ¢ they
résidted, as ‘has*béen’ already stated, even ‘the
p‘x"o‘ﬂuenon of the f’orged bond untﬂ compelled

% See Append:x 20 'Extract from Sic B. Sullivaws Speeah
in which he delivers a very different opinion,
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to it by the court; .on the othet hand, two :of
iliem regularly attended the defendants-upon
itheir trial, 'and took their gedt near Mri John
Battley, ‘at the table with the law officers; ‘in
order to assist them in ‘condukting the defenee.
 The adjournment of the court for pine days
after the evidence on hoth sides had closed;
whilst the jury were dispersed, did ‘not:pass
without observation.  The advocate-general
séemed to be aware of the impropriety of such
a'procedure, and took an opportunity if court
6 ascribe it in part to the indispositionof the
Clitef Justice, which excuse was repeatedshy
his lordship from the beneh; thpugh:itissingu=

© 14F that the Chief Justice was at ‘a -publie-fen-

tértainment: given by the Commander in-Chiel
wpon the 30th of November ;:-that in- the inter:
yal betwixt' that day and Monday:the bth.aef
Pecember, he had- interviews: -of .considezable
]e‘r‘i‘"g.tli:‘; with ‘the law officers of -government,
and that'on that day, notwithstanding:it was

very-rany dnd tempestuous,: he came-to:dig
ehntibers in vthe fort,  situated :at. least. three

ifes froin his geuntry-house, and there dran-
sicted busitess withthe law officers. ey

“ift must et be forgotien, that this sanrejury,

%hibh{ﬂéi@émﬁﬁé& arpen the aceusation against

Reddy Reéw, f‘x_:ée,_iiived’- ‘at tliese scssions ‘the.

greatest commendation from the Chief Justice
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for their pénetration and sagacity in discovering
the:-innocence.of a prisoner who was unJ ustly
aceused of murder.. The cqns‘equencé of theix;.
acuteness-and attention to their duty on that oc«
casion was, that -the accusers themselves were
put upen theirtrial for the same murder, found
guilty and executed. They;had:none‘of,thenifany
immediate connection - with the fund upon wlnch
the forgery was committed ; and if indeed thejf
could be: suspected of any bias, it must. have
naturally inclined to that side of the question to
which government, by their own. activity, and
that~of their: law officers, evinced ;:thlemsi%i,\ééé
to-beso well disposed.... .- R
: f.z'f.mefs some :gl_a-r,ing,;incqnsi,sitency;yvh.i(ﬁh_ the
prosecutors -had -ebseryed. .in .the info rmatmns
given by Mr.:John Battley, in the- ,ié;\'céfigﬁdés
tion of ReddyRosw’s claim before the commis:
stoners, and from the clese .con}neci;idn ,‘t;ha_,t? | wa;
krown:to subsist between him and Reddy Row;
the prosecutors apprehended that he. Wouldéo,
great-lengths to get:his friend and :’cqn;fedeéaté
acquitted. Mr.Battley, aecordingly, ',af.t{-t@x:id,éél.
theswholeiof the trial, and being thelastwnmg?s
examined, ‘came fully, prepared .io_agugpaigia;hil
strengthen the weak, ;and fill; up the de fe otjve
parts.: In‘a. word -he appeared to hebm ugbt
not to-speak to-one or two gpg,-;nt.\s,,eh.ﬁ;tﬂtuﬁw-xx»e
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ply every thing that appeared wanting .in the
preceding evidence. - Accordingly, although
he had been only in a very inferior and ‘subal-
tern situation in the Durbar during the whole:
of the reign of Omdut Ul Omrah, 'yet he knew:
every thing, and gave {estimony in sw ppoxt of
every part of the defence.. =
The consequence was that-e bill of md:sc«,—
me‘nt,-fo«r perjury was. preferred -against-himj
~and. found .at the same sessions: the- perjm-{y
being assigned upoen-that partof his evidence;
which deposed  to the fact of Annunda Row?s
presence and service at the Durbar of thelate
nabob.. It appearing, likewise,~from somesof
. the circwmstantial ¢vidence on the part of ‘the
prosecution, that ‘Mr. Battley and Reddy Riow
had conspired to pass upon Vienaigum Moodel-
liar.;a forged hond, purporting o be a nabob®s
bond, another bill of indictment:for a'cheatand
¢onspiracy was ‘on this account preferred and
found .against them. -~ -~ - et e
Adfter the verdict upen the 9th of December
thescourt was ‘adjourned till Monday the 12th,
during ‘which time the defendants, by consent
of y,tv,he-.gp;g_rosec«}ltm“.s, were- left at large upon

%heu‘ recognls@nces, Immedla,tely on»the
court’s meeting the advocate-general moved:fof
g releto shew cause:whyea new trial should ot
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be: granted, upon the ground of the verdict
being contrary to evidence, and contrary to the
divections of :the judge: and notice was at the
same time: given, that he would move in arrest
of judgment. ‘ ‘
-~ As Mr. Marsh had left the presulenc) to-at-
tend a -court-martial at. Bangalore, Mr. Ga-
hagan, on the part of the prosecution, ac-
guainted: the court,  that not havmfr been'em-
ployed in the trial, and not being ‘master of so
voluminous a subject, hé wasnot then prepared
to.argue.the question: on which it was’ agrrécd
tapostporie the argument upon the motion, wtil
the-ensuing sessions of oyer -and terminer ; ke
Chief Justice declaring that such motion should
bemaintained in sessions and not:in term.: My,
Gahagan, on the part of the prosecution, coni-
sentedithat thedefendants should on this occasion
¢ontioue at large upon their recognizance, the
Chief Justice at: the same time declaring; rthat
he did not require his consentito such: a mea~

suge,but should order it of his'own : authority.’

. ~In-this stage of the business, the proseeutsss
dﬁeadmo' “that - misrepresentations' might' ke
spread .abroad; were - desirois thatt the trml
should. be - published, in order that all might
judge of the justice of ‘the verdict. " ‘Acéord-
-ingly they-sent aw advertisement to the Madiras
gazetle, giving notice to that effect, which was
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expunged by the chiel secretary fo governs
ment, who at Madras is ex gfficio hcenser of
tkie press. They then applied qufs?':ally to go-
vernment, and they were informed in reply that
the governor in council deemed it inexpedient
to sanction the proposed pubhcatloh Al-
though thereply given was somewhat. amblgu-
ous, and was evidently meant to be so, yet to
the editor it appeared that it was most: dlstmgj;—
ly to be. regarded as a prohibition, and Mr.
Marsh, who afterwards applied to government
for the same permission, met with a similar re-
fusal. This gentleman indeed’ applied:in the
course of the next term to the supreme. court
~ for their permission to publish  both trials,
which - was refused by the Chief Justice,
ﬁithout any -reason assigned, _trhougl%t Sir
Benjamin Sullivan readily granted. ‘h,lss‘g.g\;
sent, -and - assigned such ‘reasons for. 1t,
as Qevé-r y- Erglishman must honour and .regggejﬁ:
The publication, however, was_‘su;?p;ressed_,_ by
the casting vote which the chiefj ust;ce,poss.eg'ggs
under the constitution of the court, .there:»hemg
only two judges present.. The next quarter
sessions were. fixed - for the Ath of Janum,
Nos 0,10, oot et
: SSZZA;;);:::; 20, cc:ntmngngi Sie BenJamm Sulhv&n’i
‘ Sgeu:h on this cubject

’the‘suggestlon of > their’ law—ofﬁcers, to the dls~j

a5

1899. Tn the mterxm great exertmns Were
made by the défendants and theu‘ supportels
to meet the approachmo' trlals
" Prior to'the first trial of Reddy Row ‘the law
ofﬁcersofgovemment had appliedto Mr. Raven-
shaw the collectorof Arcot, thlough ihe b()and of
x‘evenue upon the subJect of Annunda Row, who
on enqulry found that Annunda had in fact re-
sided ‘in the district at the time stated on the
part of the prosecu*tmn, and reported the same
accordmgly There is not perhaps in the ser-
vice a ‘more honourable and’ upnght man than
M. ‘Ravenshaw, nore more completely uncons"

nected with the creditors of - ‘the nabob; 3 mdepdx'

when he received the order to make the enqu A y
ke’ Had not the most distant susplcxon of ibe
piirposé for which it was set’ onfoot * As his 1 re-
port;however, was not fdvourb,ble tothe def‘em e,
it was of course suppressed; though the counsel
for'the prosecution, who had become acquamted
with the transaction, publiely challenged thelaw-
officers'of the- company either to contradlct the
§tory or to produce Mr. Ravenshaw’s letter. "
*/O “this second tnal howeVer, it was de-
termined to ‘make * still greater exertlons
with this.view Mr. ‘W, Saunders,a servaot of"
the: company was deputed by govemmesnt at
¢ * See Appendix, No. 19, o
E

o
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tricts where it had been proved, upon thetrial,
that Annunda Row had residedduring the.who‘le.‘
{ime it was alleged he was at the.»Dq'rba}‘ at Ma-
dras. His instructionswere, to procuremfo’rma-V
tion upon the subject, and to -sef!d-;to Madras
such persons as might appear tohim to?e‘nec‘e.se_-.‘:
sary upen the trial. Veneatta Row;a w:tnesss:for:}
the defendants upon their trial, and 'e«;?:plqygdx
as their agent upon this occasion, was dispatch-
ed beforehand to the same village to-prepare
the iphabitants for his reception. Nay, even
ﬁe defendant Annunda Row: h'.imself left j;h'ﬁ
jurisdietion of the court where. he was under
reCOgh:izancea and with the . knowledge .of the
laW-o‘fﬁéers «r_epaired to-the same place. - . ..
" The parties met at Manoorgudy,. agd-rﬁfteeu
of twenty miserable wretches were - dispatched
1o give evidence upon ‘the trial of - Battley,
whom Veneatta Row .and Annusda Row.pro-
duced to Mr. Saunders, prepared to declare tg
him, that they had never known the defendant
Annunda ‘Row., It s not the least extraor-
dinary b‘ifcllmstancg attending thisstrange. psﬂr
ceeding, “that Mr. Saunders--asho-uld. have gone
to Mé.nogrgudy~in preference to. Ch1llan?hrlim,
in quest of the desifed information;, considering
that in the late trial ithad been proved that An-

nupda Row had - resided some years atthelat-

ter place, and only a few months at the former.

X
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'The commissioners still contributed their
aid; in concert with the law officers, to up-.
hold the defendants, Reddy Row, Annunda
Row;, and Mr. Battley; for instead of ac-
knowledging their error, with regard to the
integrity of the'two former, they wrote a pub=
lic letter to government,. animadverting upon
the verdict of the jury, and upon the finding:
of the bills of indictment by the grand jury
against Mr. Battley, recommending that the
whole should be defended upon their trials by
the law officers of government.
~Upon the 9th of January, Mr. Marsh, . for
the prosecution, was heard against the motimi;
for a new trial in sessions, and particularly be-
fore the same judge that presided at the trial ;
he-argued also against the new trial, upon the
ground of the jury being the only true consti-
tﬂtion‘al:judges of the facts, and of the credi-
bility of the witnesses, stating that there was
abundance of witnesses in support of the facts;
not one of which had been impeached.  He
moved the court at the same time; for the com-

‘mitment of the defendants. On these subjects,

the chief J ustice, after eight days consideration,
raled +““ that it -was competent to the court to
entertain the motion for' a new trial in sessions,

_ but thatas anappeal had been mzde to his de-
licacy, he having presided at the past: trial,
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he would hear it argued in term.” He at the
same time argued his right to exercise his dis=
cretion as to the commitment of the defendants ¢
and he ordered them to be left at large upon
their recognizances.* : EREE
Upon the 20th of January came on before &
special jury, summoned upon the motion of the
eounsel for the defendant, the trial'of Mr.Johw
Battley, for forgery, which lasted eight days.
The evidence on this frial on the part of the
prosecution, was the same as was adduced to
prove the issue in the formgr irial; With
the addition of ten or twelve fresh ‘witnesses
from Chillambrum and Manoorgudy. The evi-
~dence on the part of the defénce was likewise
the same as they had brought formerly
with the addition of the fruits: of the Ma«~
noorgudy mission. These witnesses: preva-
ricated and contradicted themselves so ‘much,
that their perjury, manifest to the jury;: as
well as to a numerous audience, served only to
encrease the confusien of the defence,
It is important here to remark, that Mada-

puty Tremal Row, a witness for the defendants,

the same that has been particularly mentioned

in the account of. the former trial, again mest

“*.See Appendix;” No. 13, béiﬁg’ an account of t'h‘cée bi‘b-'

ceedings, given by the agents for the creditors te the com-

missioners appointed to examine into the nabob’s dabts, re~
siding in London,w .0 ool el e

X
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tnequivocally swore that he had never seew
Annunda Row . in colonel Barrett’s office, at.
the Durbar, atthe same time that Narrain Row,
a witness that had, been called to prove all the
papers in support of the defence upon the
three trials, and who was proved to be in the
same office at the Durbar, with Madaputy Tre-
mal Row, as positively swore that he used to
see Annunda Row there. : ‘
. An this trial the chief justice summed up
immediately after Mr. Marsh had finislied a
very able reply. In the course of the observa-
tions he directed to the Jury, he dwelt greatly.
upon. the weight due to the testimony of the
witnesses that had been procured by the go-
vernment mission to Manoorgudy ;—the jury,
however, after two hours consideration, ' re=
turned a verdict. of guilty, recommending. the
de,fe_ndant to mercy, on account of his former
unimpeached character.* > RN
-The court was then adjourned to the 6th of
February, when the chief Justice declared,’
““.that the jury having recommended: Batﬂéy
to.mercy, and his case being connected with
that. of the other two defendants, -he should”
make his report upon all three to his majesty,”
and m the mean time leave them at large
upon their 1'e_cogvnizaxvllces.”b - This verdict; how-

*'_See Appendix, No., 14, Letter from the agents of ;;fh.e‘
creditors transmitting a list of the jury, :
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sver, which entirely confirmed the former,
had the effect.of inducing the advocate-gene~
ral to abandon his motions for a new trial, and
in arrest of judgment. v
A circumstance happened on this occasion,
which perhaps more than any other dlsplays
the strong bias that throughout influenced the
measures of government. At the conclusmn of
the trial, an app]lcatmn was made to govern=
ment by Mr. Robert Orme, and recommended
by the commissioners, for the payment of 1300
star pagodas, expended in the Manoorg‘udy
nitssion, to defend a man convicted of pelJurya
This sum was immediately ordered to be
paid, and charged upon the funds set apart | for
the benefit of the private ‘creditors, thmwh
Sir George Barlow treated with contemptuoué
silence an application for relmbursement ont
the palt of those credlitors who at a great ex-
pence had successfull; detected thew forgerles
on the common property

To give a true picture “of the scenes that
occurred it is.also necessary to relate, that pre-
v1ous to the commencement of this trial, it was
proved upon the oath of Mr. John Tulloh, that
his house had sold one- seventh share of the
bond proved to be a forgery, to Mr. Anstru-
ther, the advocate-general; while on the former
trial it had been proved on the evidence of Mr.
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Brodie, that the bond had long. ceascd to be
the property of Reddy Row. . Astonished at
these facts, recollecting that R edd; Row. had
deposed before the commissioners, that it was
his property, not knowing what subomatlon
to suspect, or how dignified the subomexs mlo‘ht
be, the prosecutms on the day after the con-
thmn, applxed to the commlssxoners for coples
of certam mformatlons taken by them in. the
mvestlga.tmnof Reddy Roy s claim. - To whlch
request the commissioners expxessmg theu‘ de-
ference for the veldlct of the special mry im-
medlately acceded Though three da)s after-
wards. when the prosecutoxs applled for fulther
papers whlch the. -commissiopers had mtxmated
to them through their writer, they mlght lmve,
tbey were refused, w1thout any reason bemg
assngned for it.* |
It will naturally be 1magmed that somethmm
very extraordm y must have intervened to oc-
casion this sudden transmon from the hl"‘h
respect for the verdict of a specxaIJury, which
the commissioners entertained on the 3d of Fe-
bruary to their reducmg that 1dentlcal verdlct
‘below the level of their own oplmon upon the
7th of the same month, and to mduce them

g0 suddenly to depart from thelr acqulescence :

% Sge Appendix, “No. 15. -

=
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“in granting the copies of the papers that were

required.

In fact the decision of the chiefjustice took
place on the 6th of February, and a conference
was immediately afterwards held between the,
commissioners and the advocate general. Ttis
probable therefore that to the decision, and to
what passed at this conference are to be
ascribed this sudden alterationin the line of con-
duct which they had adopted. Indeed, embol-
dened by the language which fell from the
bench, and. probably urged by .the advice of
the advocate general, the commissioners on the
same day made a formal complaint to the go-
vernor in council against Messrs: Roebuck,
Parcy, Abbot and Maitland, for the impedi-
ments and interruptions they had thrown in the
way - of their investigation, of which the very
letter they had before l'éplied to with so l much
cheerfulness and good will, is made the foun~
dation, ihougll théy took nonotice ofvt‘liei'rv_owh‘
letter of the 3d, which they had written in re-
Py o
The January sessions were adjourned upon
the 2d of February to the 23d, on account of

the term, and again from the 23d of February

to the 2d of March: in this interval thg de-

* See Aipp;eilyldix, No. \16.‘

bob’sdeath » Reddy  Row owed to -V
Moodeliar the sum of 15,500 - pagodas, that
Venaigum') ,
‘not obtain
-wards he brought an
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fendants Mr, Battley and Redd y‘Row, attem ’p‘t«v

ed to elude the trial upen the prosecution of Vig-
naigu‘m Moodeliar by buying him off ; ‘a’ come
promise ‘was..actually. made ‘between theiq -
and awarrant of attorney given to another ‘séi:
licitor, - Mr. Fownes Bisney, the brother in it
of Mr.: Anstruther, the ‘advocate-general, xy
therizing him to withdraw the 'i’ndictrherit’,“ e
i An affidavit to these facts was filed in the
Supreme court, upon the 22d of F ebruary by
Mr Abbot and Mr. iEigh t, and in’ COhsecﬁj;né‘e

3 rule “to. shew cause why an attachment

should not issue against M. Battley and Reddy
ROWW as granted, This;m:easure'alarhiéd:"flljé
.}_),afnj‘f;’;‘,es,.;and put a stbp to any-:ﬁlrthert‘~proceed;
lngs upon the compromise. - The trial accord.-
ingly' came: on  before a s pecial jury, sum-
moned “upon: the motion -of the. defendants ‘on

the 2d of March, and on the 6th, the jury re-

ftﬂf??di?‘“verdict of guilty against both defens.
dants. - . C s

- In this trial it was pfoved on the"fpfart; éf the

prosecution, thatat the time of the lafe gy

enaigum

pressed him for payment, and coutd
i, that two or three months - after-

‘action of ‘debt against
(5
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him in the supreme court, and took out acapias;
thatin order to avmd this pmcess, Reddy Row
shut himself upin his ‘house, and remained in
that state of confinement about nineteen months,
Jﬁtmg which time he had seen Venaigum once,
and sent frequent messages to him 1mplormg
hlm to withdraw the pracess against him ; that
at the end of this time Venaigum was sent, for
to Mr. Battley s house, and that Mr. Batltlley
begged him to allow Reddy Row to come t etc:
without molestation, to which he agreed : thad
qudy Row . “accordingly came there: an
ihat Mr. Battley produced. to Venalgu:x
2 Persmn paper, said to be a nabobs b{:n 1;
for pwodas 15,500 in his ewn name, ;vf lcm
they pretended Reddy Row had procure r; '
the nabob ; that Mr. Battley assured him tha
the bond was a good -and true. one; that he

‘itnew it to be so, and advised Venaxgum to take

1t in satlsfactlon of Reddy Row’s debt ; that éhe
Bond was txanslated by M. Battley mto n,;
ghsh that it set forth that the mone) ?nd
by Venalgum to. Reddy Row had been a(;;;;} ie
as. foﬂows viz. that 4500 pagodfts ha egn
pald to Mr. Fxtzgerald the nabob’s physm;n,
on agccount of | his tunka.hs, and 11,000 p:gga a;
to the pa,yment ot‘ the Company s Kis {1;
ﬂlat some days after two Enghsh rec?% e:
‘written by Mr. Fitzgerald, for the amounts

g5

fore mentioned were’ ‘given to him® as vouchers H
but that the receipts bore dates pnor to the
10an from Venaigum to Reddy Row “and thaf
when Venaigum remarked this, it was explamed
tohim by Reddy’Row “ that he had prevmusly
“borrowed money from other persons to pay
« Mr Fltderald ‘and had afterwards apphqd
. the money borrow¢d from him to replace
« those sums,””

Throughout his examlnatlon in chief, and
"upon his -cross examination the prosecutor
emphatlcally declared that he accepted thé
bond’ upon the assurance given him by Mr.
Battley, that he kuew it to be a good and true
bond
Durmg the tlme that Reddy Row was con-
cealmg hlmself Chmmah Moodeliar, a na-
t;ve of the ﬁrst respectablllty, and havmg
_n10 mterest whatsoever in the nabob’s debts,
"prm ed that he had mterposed his good offices

;;between hlm and his credltors and that when
_;.he advxsed the former to satnsfy his credi,-

tors, by giving them secunty of nabob’s or
..RaJah’s bonds, he unequlvocally declared tha,t

‘Bg had ne such bonds.

_Tremal Row prOvedb an mtervww at the
Durbar soon after the death of the nabob,
when lt appeagred that Reddy Row had no
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bond from the nabob, nor any sééurity, but
an assignment upon the crops which had been

-assumed by the company. Mr. ' W. D. Brodie, -

‘proved that he had acted some years as agent
to Mr. Fordyce in: collecting- and tmnsm;ttmg
to him the claims of creditors upon the nabob
ofthe Carnatic, that a claim of Reddy Row’s
for pagodas 87,703, 98, 20 upon a balanc®
of an open account current had been prefer-
red through him in July 1802 ;—that he un-
.derstood that Reddy Row had no clalms upon
bonds at that time ; and that it after wards ap-
peared to him that the .same balance was
claimed a second time in the form of bonds. '

On the part of the defence, the truth of the

bond was attempted to be established by the
evidence of other Saucars who had lent money to
Reddy Row, and who had at different periods
subsequent 1o the death of the nabob, accepted
bonds similar to that preferred to .Venalgum in
satisfaction of their demands ; and. by the evi-
dence of Narram Row, :the same witness: that
proved the dufters in the founer tria ls, who in
like manner attempted -to prove: in the trlals,
several documents produced from ‘the duf-
ters in suppmt of the: bond. It appeared

howwer, very clearly upon the cross examina-

‘tion of the Saucars that they by no. means:ac-
cepted the bonds from a eonviction that they

81

were good and true nabob’s bonds, but because
they thuuo"ht their debts desperate, and that
‘this was theu only means of recovering any part
oftbem One of them after having prosecuted
Reddy Row received a considerable’ portion of
his debt in ready money : and all but one ‘took
ertten engagements from Reddy Row, to in-
demnify them in case their nabob’s bonds should
not be passed. -All too betrayed very great in-
consnstency in their deposxtmns ‘and- that of.
Veneram Dave in particular was a tissue of
the most glaring = contradictions and preva-
rlcatlon from beginning to end. In a word
it appeared manifestly that they were mtereﬁt«
ed in the acquiital of Reddy Row.

Upon the second day of this trial an obJec-
tion was taken by the advocate general to the
wording of the indictment, which descrlbed
the prosecutor as Sadras Venawum Moodel_
liar, whereas the bond described him slmply aS

'Vcnalgum Moodelliar.  The questlon was
_’argued but not much at length, and the
’chlef‘]ustlce postponed the demsmn of the
‘;court upon it until the ensumo- dd_y When
he declared - hIS opinion that the ObJectxoll

taken by the counsel for the defendant would

vbe fatal to the mdlctment bl.h. that it was not
'the propei stao‘e of the trml in which to. move

1t unless the counsel for the prosmutloa would
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consent to quash the indictment they were try-
ing, and send in a new bill to the grand jury,
Mr. ‘Marsh being confident. that the objection
was futlle, did not adopt the suggestion of the
chief justice, and the cvent justified his dis~

cernment. The trial went on, the advocate. ge-
neral indeed gave notice that he shou]d move in

arrest of Judgment after the trial, if the ver-
dict should be against him. The werdict was
against him, he did not however move in azrcst
of judgment. R
%W’};en. the verdict was pronounced, the
coumei for the prosecution moved for the
commnmcnt of the defendants, The adyocate-
geuem‘ opposed - the commitment upon the
groun& of the niotice which he had given. that
he should move in arrest of judgment. . After
a few moiments consideration, theoh;ejf Jl_l:st}ce.,
declared that he must commit the defendants,
un}ess the ‘prosecutors consented to their re-
mammg at large :—this was refused,j the

defendants were committed ; and the court was. .

ad@ourned to Wednesday the 8th of March.

From the commitment of the defendantsw
the prosecutors and the pubhc were led to be-.
hev« that a third verdict. pronounced agamst_-,
the same. partles had. determined  the - chief.
]ustxce to carry the law into cxecutwn agamstf |
them. . He had however a long interview with
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the governor; Sir George Barlow, on Tuesday

the 7th of March: and on the followmg day whe::
the defendants were brought up, the chief
Jjustice pronounced his resolution to refor thxs
verdict, as he had done the two former ones

to his majesty, and to leave the defendant;
in the mean time at large upon their recog—
mzances '

‘Such was theé effect of ‘these three verdicts
upon the mind of the chlefJustlce,wthethdge
could not agree that this triple conviction
ought to abridge the hberty of Reddy Row,
so neither did the commissioners admit that it
ought to diménish his credibility. He conti-
nued after' three solemn verdicts against him
to walk the strects of Madras in triumphant
defiance, attended as usual at the office of the
commissioners, and disposed by his evidence of
that property against which he had directed

* the united efforts of perjury and illegal com-

bination. ~ It was for some time doubtful whe-
thier the bond itself would not have been left"
in the hands of the commissioners ; and by‘
them recommended for the sanction of the com-—
missioners in England ‘the chief j J ustice ‘con-
tended that notw1thstand1ng ‘the verdiets of
juries the commissioners were bound to recom-
mend the bond as a good one, if they in their
judgment deemed it tobe so. Sir Benjamin
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Sullivan, the other judge, delivered a totally

opposite opinion, and to his gpinion ‘{he chief

justice at last subscribing, the bond ~was taket

out of the custody of the commissioners and
delivered up to the ‘court.* ' O
_* Thus the governmént of Madras embarked in
three law suits in which they had not hatul
rally the most distant concern, and “after every
influence of ex‘p‘e’nce,“intimidati(’m, ‘and irre=
gular agency, “had been tried in vain, “found
themselves defeated in all points ; but the
government of Madras ‘was not so constituted
as to endure the fair restraints of ;j ustice’ With

‘patience; and the most severe and unpheard-of

revenge was prepared for those, who had‘been
the instruments by which - these restraints werg
imposed. * The first victim to thfe__‘irritgi_ted-pfé‘si:‘
sions of the government, was Mr. Benjamin
Rocbuck, mint-master,and military pay inaster™
general in both of which s-i’tuat"idns'Bis,“é(‘mvd‘(jé}_
hiad been more than once highly commended by
the government. This gentleman, near 60 years
of age, who had served the éo’mpény‘fihbtl‘oﬁr;
ably for ‘thirty-five years, was' ‘su"ddénl'y order-

ed from Madras, where he “héxd@r'e'é‘i‘déd during
Ahe ‘whole of “his “stay in India, ";_»_,;1ep.‘rviy¢_"d‘i of
both his offices, “and sent up . to Viza-

¥ Seve,(App,e.&%i&,:N,:@# 20, -

41

gapatam five hundred miles from Fort
St. George, with a salary reduced from iOU@
pagodas per month to 350.The manner in whj l‘
?hls cruel transaction was carried into eﬁ"ectl‘
18 so very characteristic of the préceedini,
of the“ Madras government at that eri‘o; ?
and the letter of the unhappy man (,W}Iio fi -
saw his approaching death ), %o simple Ore(;
respectable, that both the mandate opf T\/?‘In
Bucl;an‘a.nd the last pet‘itibn of Mr. Roeb_ li.
b@f:ore his decease,are well desex‘villo'dffhe‘uc "
serlous attention.* ; e
- It seems natural to English feelinfrsi ﬁ) sup-
pose that the humble appeal of an obld d‘hp’
tn,Qu‘ra_.hle servant of the KEast Ihdia 2::[:) ‘ ‘?‘
ny, m'xght. have met with somé atten‘ﬁon@pd(;
that it .c,.o,uld not be considered as deré ,a,ta‘n‘ |
to .t_l}e dignity of any colonial govei‘nmihtoiz
assign a cause for punishment, and to aff’ord
the opportunity of excuse and explénatit |
before that punishment was inflicted VNGH
answer was given to his petition, 1\/Ir R;ebu‘ ;
was hastened away to V\i_z‘agap“éta;n' ‘( 'ind as
eve;yiyb’.qdy._fore_saiw Wolil_d be the‘wcase; éo -
fell a victim fo a bioken heart,occasioned b); t;);zi

severity of the treatment which he had thus up--

j.l,l‘st_ly e_x(peri,e.nced; a death too sudden and. too
eruel for an English gentleman who had been

+* Vide'Appendix, No,17, 18-
G
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guilty of no other fault, than an appeal to the.
law in defence of his property, and who had

ven receded from that appeal the moment in
which he had found it to be obnoxious to the
government. ) Co

- After the death of this truly: amiable man,
the next victim singled out was Mr. Parry,
a respectable merchant who had resided
above twenty years in Madras, and who as has.
before been stated had been selected by thebond
fide creditors of the mabob in common with
Meﬁrs. Roebuck, Abbot,andMaitland to watch
over their inferests, and prosecute any forgeries
upon the fund set apart for the benefit of those

* who had really lent their money : if a merchant

canin any ‘manner‘be ruined, it-must be by a
sudden and peremptory exile from ‘the scene
of all ‘his ‘speculations ~and engagements;
Mr. Parry was accordingly ordered to embark
‘oni board the first ship thatsailed for England,
‘and this without any cause assiged, and with-
‘out the -sligll‘test' opportunity afforded of bring-
ing Sir G. Barlow to any ex planation of so ¥io-
Teént a proceeding ; it is necessary that a licensed
‘residentinour East India colonies shq;uld{reqeige
‘ayear’s fiotice before he is sent home ;'Tit- so hap-
pened,how‘ever,that an ordet for thereturn of Mr.
Parry had been sent out nine -years before from
the government at home : butas this hadom-
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ginated entirely in misconception,.it had never.
been acted upon and had been long since revok~
ed. The.pretence of its existence, however;wasn
the plea upon which this order amounting to
his total ruin was issued to Mr. Parry. .
~“Mr.Maitland was immediately after dep_r,i‘v’ed;'
of his office of justice of the p.eace,Mx;.: G,.e,ox".ge
Strachey and Mr. I. A, Grant who ha‘d‘se'r\tfed
upon the grand jury that found the bills againsf
Reddy Row and Battley, Mr. Oliver, and
Mr. Keene wlio_had served upon the special
juries that tried these defendants, Mr, Wood
and- - other civil servants] who had afgteh.déd
the trials, or expressed opinions upon them
‘were ‘all deprived. of their situations at Mé,-
dras, ‘and . banished to the most remote paris
of India,nor could the most earnest',pr'éyer's and
,,.g‘n“treaties of these unfortunate ‘gcntleme.n‘ break
through the silence of the government.. In a
‘momentthey were mysteriously deprived of their
‘station-and their subsisteuce ; the abject s},ee,m’e'd
not oh¥y to punish but to goad with every é,pé-
cies of mortification, and the alarming s‘plecitva‘-

‘->e}e‘~ was exhibited of an English government
. ‘not calmly inflicting pain for the restraintv‘bf

vil, but vindictively delighting in the 4maze-

~xifent of its victims.* .

% See Appendix 19, Letter from the‘agents to t_he:cd;n.

wmisioners in Loodon, i -

S
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As it appears impossible to justify this dis-
turbance of public justice, and this system of
juridical resentment upon any common princi-
ples, recourse has been had by the agent of the
Madras government (sent over for the -express
purposeofdefending the measures of Sir George
Barlow) to the supposition of disaffection
among the civil servants : and the whole of these
trials are represented to have been a combina-
tion against the wishes of Sir George Bar-
low, an organized conspiracy of the civil ser=
vants of the settlement to defeat the ends of jus=
tice,and to bring the government into-contempt;

.The  difficulty in this supposition is . to

- find any possible motive for such a° coms:

bination. 'The conspirators (if -any): were
the bond fide creditors who were in the propor-
tion of one to seven, to the ostensible creditors:

the minority against the majority, the investi-
gation of the guilt of Reddy Row was com-
menced on the part of the pxosecutorswnth the
certaih knowledge that some of the first peo-
ple in the settlement were holders.of farged
bonda ¢ puuhased by them as real ones) to the
amount of sixteen or seventeen . lacks.of pago-
daé If ever there was.an lmprobable ground
for a conspiracy it was a. declaration, tothe

commumty at large that six  sevenths. of aspe-

cles of pmperty widely diffused among - them
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was worth nothing at all, nor isit possible to
understand how such & diminution of men’s
hopes, and such a destruction of their supposed
property could be made rallying points for the
disaffection of the settlement.

If indeed the unhappy disposition of  the
government to interfere, when they had
no 'natural irterest, had taken an opposite
direction ; if they had defended the interests of
the small number of real creditors against the
widely extended forgeries by which the value
of 'their property was diminished, there rmOht
then perhaps have been some risk of public
irritation’: but in these trials government

took the part of the many against the few,
and- succeeded in turning mens'minds to the
stde ‘of justice, only because such interference
of ‘government, in any degree was deemtd
unjust and (as it was conducted ) intolerable.

-If every thing which took place in these
trials was the consequence of disaffection,
why was Mr. Batley recommended to mercy

by the jury? Why was the bill found against

Poupmh Why did the second grand jury ﬁnd
another bill presented by the governnient oﬁ“i~

~cers? - 8ix-bills only relative to these concerns

were presented to the grand juries, three by the

Jdaw :officers, and" three by the agents for the
| ‘private creditors. “The law officers succceded
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in two bills and failed in one. The private
creditors succeeded in all three. It doesnot
ép’pear from all this bow there could be a
disposition to refuse justice to the side espous-
ed by the government, nor does there appear
in such a statement sufficient reason why
grand jurymen acting upon oath should be ex-
posed to those vindictive punishments by which
they were afterwards attacked. R
*The sentiments of the petty juries were never
put to the test b y government, for of the two bills
of indictment found, which were psesented by
their law officers, neither was prosecuted  any

farther. These trials, however,might have been -

made a mere pretence, and if the disaffection ex-
isted, any cause, however trifling and insigni-
ficant, might have been sufficient todevelopeit;
a general system of economy recommended ‘by
the East India Company had been purs'u-eafby
Sir George Barlow, and the discontent which
{his is said to have occasioned, has been repre-
sented as the cause of that supposed’ disaffec-
tion which'is said to have displayed 'itself in
the trials. It is remarkable, however, that’ of
;11 ‘the civiligns displaced by Sir George Bar-
low, and who must therefore be presumed to

have been “the most eager in 'this imaginaty -

B

opposition, not ofie “had sustained, --or was

that the army in India mut
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?hreatened with the slightest diminution of his
income, or had the most trifling grievance o;'
1';1115 nature to complain of. After thbis plain and
m.dubita.ble fact, we ought to hear no more 6f
disaffection produced by economy; of this econo-
my, on the contrary, there was a very candid
ap;pr.obation inthe settlement, proceeding from a
convictionof its absolutenecessity. If Si;ﬁGeorO‘:
Barlow had conducted himself with thé saﬁ:e
teml.aer...and discretion upon all other points aé
he did in carrying into effect the economicaljan
rangements of the Company, Madras wéuld‘svtil‘l
have been the same flourishing and happ set
tlement in which it was before ’its promy ity
was consigned to his care, ey
- The conduct of the government in these trial
Yvan.ts some extraordinary circumstances f'ofl ':)
justification,the agents of thatgovernment clealrS

ly feel that unless they can set up some un

~usual ‘ : 1
usual pretext for the extraordinary violence

Qf, ~which lt has been guiity, that it wmust
attract. public attention, and recoil upon th
heads of the aggressors. Livery b;)d:f kh;;ve

. R E e S

inied,: and ad
taoe o 1l , St and advan-
lage 1s.taken of our careless inspection into

the affairs of the east, to disseminate a cop

fused and general notion that Sir George Bar

low was dei “into . tha
low was driven into. these. measures. by the

a;o,’-"' ' - ) .
bpated state of government during the my
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tiny, by the necessity of keeping up its impor«
tance, and by the ignorance in which he was.

whether there might not be some connection.

between military revolt aund civil opposition.
But these civil differences began in the mid=-

dle of the year 1808. The mutiny did not break .

out till the middle of the year 1609. Informa-

tion was laid of Reddy Row’s forgery. in July

1808. 'The plaintiffs were threatened by go-

vernment in October, the bill was found in the

same month, the. first verdict was given against.

government on the 9th of December, the second ..

on the 28th of January 1809; and on the 13th.

of Feb;‘ud1) 18G9, it was first understood in the .. .»

settlement that there was any. species of dis-
agreement between government. and the com-

mander inchief; before thisperiod, there wasnot .
the most distant suspicion of such an event. . So ..
that 0'nvemmeht and the private creditors, the.

grand and petty juries had in the two fiest
trials all resolved on, and acted their respec- -
tive. parts. before this disagreement with. the.

army had the shadow of existeuce, though. this

disagreement is relied upon to explain and to .
vilify the motives of those who were opposed

160 g ovemment in these tuals

T,he last trial which grew. necessartly out ofv’
the othels, took place on the | 6th of Mazxch, apd L

terminated as the othershad done The mdxctment

49

was preferred before the grand jury on the
October of the preceding year, and the ver-
dict - was given by the same special jury
which had been impanelled in the second cause,
There never was in' fact so shameless a de-

fence of improper proceedings as this defence
of the injustice of the Madras government,
by the supposition of a combination between
the ¢ivil and the military. There is no overt’
act which proves it, no secret connexion was
ever brought to light, which regarded it
letter' was ever known to be sent, no meetmg
ever known to be held between ‘these two de-
S(Erl.ptlons of the company’s servants. Noin=
dividual civilian was ever tried for ‘it, or ever
accused of it ; Sir George Barlow has not in
any of his public papers, made the most dis-
tant allusion to it, noris it "wmentioned by
Lord Minto, who cannot be accused of omission
in his‘publications relative to the late mutm)
It in fact was'never heard of till it started up in
this country as a'plausible excuse for the scenes
of ‘injustice and oppression which were about
to‘b.e’ developed: it then seems for the first time
to have occurred that the way to make injur-

-ed men odious, was to call them disaffécted.

- Butto what - purpose or for what object could
this dlsplay df dxsaﬁ'ectxon be made’ by large bo--
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dies of civil servants in India ? What could they
hope to get? where to go? or what to do ? if
the dominion of the company was destroyed,
with it must perish all their hopes of acquiring
wealth,and of retui'ning to their native country.
Thereneverwasany body of agents so completely
subjected to the power of their employers, and
so completely identified with them in. point of
interest. If the éongpiracy failed, the leaders
would have been ruined, if it succeeded
all would have been ruined: men with arms
in their han_ds, are ;_liabvle at all times to. fits of
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they had done wrong in becoming parties
to a cause where they had no natural ig-
térest, and that the same servants of the com-
pany w‘h"o on ordinary occasions were entirely at
their disposal, could mnot, and would mot
sacrifice their sense of right and wrong, when
ealled upon as jurors, to the arbitrary will of
any human being ; how to extricate théms"elveé
fromtheir errors they kiew not; the only remedy
;they applied was perseverance in it,and that per-
severance naturally conducted them to thoseacts
thyrarmy which this narrative has related. ‘;i

e e e e

! irritation and excess, but to foster a general “* was three and twenty years,”says Sir Benja~

';5 spirit of discontent among the civil servants mih Sullivan, ““a confidentjal servant aft‘he cdl]rh-

jf’ in India, and to have trained them to a syste- “'pany under this government, and feel an‘

1&[[ matic opposition to the will of government, ““ habitual leaning towards tﬁe,m ; Ta ”-t

Efﬁ” must have beenat any time regarded as i the “ therefore inclined to impute " én’jy .‘thi:’y'nso
. , 15

extreme of every thing that was incongrueus,
absurd, and impossible. : o

il In truth there never were any causes where
11‘ the investigation was more complete, or. the
| efforts of the juries to do justice more exem-
' g’ plary ; they knew that the eyes of all persons
" were upon them, they IWere :selleCtef(i,.,as-f the
Ll ~ ablest, and most upright men in the settlement,

" ‘them beyond imprudence, but i

¢

e

, mprudent [
am afraid they have been in ta‘“king" any
“ part in'a"'cause,‘which seemed to call on
‘~“th¢m for a steady and determined neutra-
“ﬂ~--'lity,'aﬁd"had:1 still been their attorney
“ general, this is 'thg conduct T should hdvé
‘-‘;:a"dv‘ised.'” Hap‘py ‘would it have been for
Sir G. Barlow had he listened to such
Prudent and rational advice, But in his op‘i- -
wion, that duthority and respect which had been

i and their fesolution to decide as ‘their con-
i science jr\rjight»diqt@tg to them, was notdo be
‘ | shaken. = Government found when too late that
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lost by i’oll y was to be retrieved by cruelty',e:far?ri
opponent was at once'sw?pt away before 1tm(;
and a principle was assiduously pro,lpaga]e-
throughout the set(lement‘,‘ that the.v :w
(useful only for the litigat.mfw of sungg s)
should be silent and ‘submissive, whenl,on';(j
the -pleasure of government was: dec are:; (i
a doctrine which could mnot be to}gr;..gh»_
here, and from the tremendou.s‘ eﬁ:ccts vo;ff xlv 1f:es
men quie‘tly doing their duty in distant.co ?n§
ou}ght‘to be protected.

_ Considering the violence -of: .which !.?l&' ~h;a§ .,
b’ee-n‘ gﬁilty, and the perils to which he has sub--

jected our Indian empire, Sir G: ‘Barlow ‘has

been hitherto treated witha consideration which

he certainly does not deserve. ‘He 1s ..‘not:tx:;
turally a bad man,and nob(.)d,y,ha.s, ever 1»rx}11}-)sac-
to him any corruptipn in his motives, (:11'i ‘lta‘n‘d._
tions, but he is a man of fnoderat.e un ex;‘sryvent
ihg, and unbounded van.lty, with .a fe !
desire to act,with a g’reat.lgnoran(:.e how. go fact;
and with as little suspicion of his own e'e;s

as ever: -entered into .the _cf)ntem'-platlon. 0 da
buman being ; as a second in office, he ga;ne . ,
and was éntitled to, real credit ; he was obser-

vant of forms, accurate in details, and  patient

of labour : with these qqa;jties,y.these»:,prgi-s_“es
and with the self-importance 'whlch‘theywnaﬂ;
:turallzy 4inspired,hesucceeded to thegoverumen
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of the southern parts of India, and the com-
mand of a vast army. He first failed (as or-
dinary men commonlydo fail) in'the choice of
bis advisers, and then in the choice . of his
measures; some little deference to men’s feel.
ings, some study.of their characters, and some
knowledge of their passions would have easily
carried him through the trifling difficulties
which presented themselves = to ~his  atten-
tion, but all these things were. beyond - the
routine of office to which he had been accus-
tomed, and -'for\eign to the: notions of dignity
whichhe had cherished. 5 whatever happened
he had no.other resource than an order trans-
mitted by the chief secretary ; if this failed he

had recourse to another order, sstill more vio-

lentand more ungracious ; and at last,was often
driven for refuge to the borders.of lawless vio-
lence and outrage.

- +For the servants of the company whe-

ther civil or military, he had only

one
distinction.

Those who approved of and

praised all. his measures; and those who -

did not. Of the latter there was but one class:

respectful remonstrance, official. informadtion,
zealous advice, lawful appeals,conscientious re-
~ sistance in the discharge of duty, were all con-

founded.;with.open-rebellian' 5 all marked with

secret infamy to the government af home, or




b4

punished on the spot with banishment, and

rty. o
poéicl{are*the means by which this unfit
person has attempted to govern one of our m(‘).s‘ft
valuable colonies ; of the consequences we are
all too well informed. In eighteen months
after Sir George Barlow succeeded to the go-
vernment of a quiet " settlement and aloy@l
army, eighty thousand men were in open re-
bellion against him ; and "almost every cw}l
servant of respectability banished from.hxs
presence, whilst an example has been given
which ne time will ever obliterate : for the
lesson of disaffection which Sir G. Barlow first
taught the native troops, by tampeﬁhg: with
them to resist their European officers, is now
fast spreading throughout our Indian army,

and laying the foundation of future scenes,
which no one who hopes or fearsfor our East-
ern possessions,can contemplate without horror».

APPENDIX,

No. 1.

Memorandum of Claims preferred by Reddy Row before
the Commissioners. ’

1798,
26th July.
1799,
28th August.
1800,
15th April.
21st October,
1801,

9th May.
26th Ditto,

2d June
13th Ditto.

‘19th Ditto

23d Ditto,
24th ba'icgq.
26th bitto.
#7th Ditto.

28th Ditto.

1801, -
Ist May.

17th June.

Bond assigned by Gopal Row

to Reddy Row .
Ditto, Ram Row Putimaja to

ditto,of which 5000 was paid
Dittoin favour of D. Moorlapah

assigned to Reddy. Row
Ditto C

Ditto in favour of Reddy Row
Balance due on open account
" in favour of Reddy Row, as=

signed overto D. Moorlapah

Bond in favour of Moorlapah

Ditto assigned by * Antiapah
Naig to D. Moorlapah

"Ditto 8. Vincatasah Chitty to
ditto .~ - S

Ditto in' favour of D. Moor-
lapah

Ditto  assigned by Narrain
Chitty to Reddy Row -

Ditto by Yeverja Dava, do.

Ditto. by Narrasmgah Row, -

ditto

. Dittoassigned to D Moorla-

- pahby M. Anant
Ditto by Boojunga Row to D.
Moorlapah -
Ditto in favour of D. Moorla-
" pah ¢
Eitto assigned by Juvana Naig
to D. Moorlapah

List of bonds said to be includ-
ed in the account of open
balance for SPs,87,705 23 20

Moorle Doss )

Ceicor Vincata Narraijn -

Vervanada Jawker

Venoyagum

Virdarajah-

Rama Chundiapnt :

Duatajie Mcorlapah assign.
ed to Dr. Dayies )

"Prabico Doss '

Boojunga Row

38,500 0 0
37,45 0 0

26,443 0 0

23,000 0 0

—— 49,313 0 0
11,800 0 0 '

87,703 23 20

————— 99,503 23 20
60,050 0 ,

1,298 0.
16,500 =0

0
0
0

3,37 9.0

9447 0 O

15,945 0 0

5,193 2% 40
15570 0 0
5,195 28 0
58,500 0 0

7,880 0 0
——— 1,76,954 17 40

6000 0
4000
21,400
15,500
5,700
5000

Tococoe
coocooco

25,800 0 0

13,300 0 0

1000 0 0

e $87,1100 0 Q
e i

4,89,445 40 60

.
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No. IL. o
. “Fort'St. George, 20th August, 1305.».f

vernor in Council, from the Agents

Address to the Governor in Council, from Agents

of the real creditors of the Nabob, stating the bad

consequences which may arise f:rom thﬁ; 1nte}'fe\*ence
‘of Government in the approaching Trials. -

To the Honourable Sir George 'B‘a‘rlqv’v, Bart. and
K. B.Governor in Council. C

Honourable Sir, ’ o

1. We hope we shall be excused for troubling your
Honour in Council upon.a subject in which the -
terests of those who are really _creditors . of the late
nabobs of the Carnatic, is materially cqncerned,as well
as, though more remotely, that of the Honourable
the East India Company.

2. Tt is a notorious faotfthat }claims to an en:l‘smggs

. have been, laid before the commissioners ap-

aﬁg‘;:; to investigate the demands on the late nabobs

of the Carnatic,to perhaps at least ten times more than

those claims could have been estimated at, as was

supposed by those who had the best means of form-
ing an opinion on the subject. o Co

3. Tt is generally believed, that the greatevrip_a}‘t‘pf
thg b{)tr,ils gﬂpOl} vgl}ich these claim.s‘haveﬁbegn magek
are forgeries : and as the real creditors hayg by _the
agreement ‘entered into with -the. I—{Qppgxabyle;ﬁt‘ ie

- East India Company, made co‘n“s:%(‘lg_ljgblqsacrl ices
in order to have it eftected, it is pec’qhvgrlylpcgtr‘nbg%
on such creditors in this country, as well on their own

account, as on the part of those they represent in

itai in fact for the general interest of
Great Britain, and 1n fact for the general nteress O
all parties concerned . in the,arraggement thchhas
taken place for an adjustment of the- ,‘éggggnds’: 1r;
question, to guard as faras they possibly Can agains
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the admission of claims, by which the fair creditor
of the late nabobs of the Carnatic may be deprived of
the advantages of the fund appropriated for his res
lief; and by which the interests of the Honourable the
East India Company may be ultimately materially
affected o

4. A short time ago, a meeting of some of the
creditors of the late nabobs of the Carnatic,who it was
well known, had actually themselves had money trans-
actions with the Durbar, was convened at the ex-
change, when we were appointed, with others, to
watch over their interests and those of the creditors
in general, and to take such steps as we might deem
advisable on the occasion. "

‘5. The first bond advertised by the commissioners
for investigation, and claimed by Roya Reddy Row;
one of the Serishtadars of the late nabob of the Car-
natie, and at present in the service of his highness the
nabob Azim ul Dowlah, and constantly in attendance
with the commissioners, was challenged as a forgery.
Informations to this effect were laid before the sitting
magistrate, and Roya Reddy Row and a person called
Anunda Row were committed, and gave bail for their
appearance at the next sessions for the said forgery.

6. On the 26th of July, pending the abeve men«
tioned examinations at the public office, it was un-
derstood that the commissioners acquainted the sit-
ting magistrate that they had addressed a letter to
government to request they would- order ‘their law
officer to proceed against two of the witnesses ‘who
were then making their depesitions -against. the said
Roya Reddy Row and Anunda Row, for having per-
Jured themselves in giving evidence before the com-
missioners; but the sitting magistrate conceiving that
there was sufficient matter in the informations taken

before him to commit the said ‘Roya Reddy Row

and Anunda. Row; théy were committed accords

ingly.

I
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7. A few days afterwards it was publicly knowt,
and certainly not without some degree of astonish-
ment, that the law officer of government had actually
commenced proceedings against the two evidences
alluded to in the letter of the commissioners, because
it was, and certainly not unreasonably, supposed that
those who came forward voluntarily to give evidence
against claims produced before the commissionets,
would rather have met with the support than the'dis<
approbation of government. o

8. Trusting, however, that the sitting magistrate
would have allowed matters to take their regular
course, we did not deem it necessary at the time to
state these facts to your honourable board.

0. We havesince been informed that the two wit-
nesses above mentioned have been bound over to
take their trial for the crime before stated, at the en«
suing sessions. e

10. We therefore feel ourselveg compelled to lay
these particulars before your honourable board, and
to submit whether such proceedings may not tend
entirely to discourage natives from coming forward
to question any claims however unfounded, rand: ins
fact, whether they are not likely to stifle enquiry and
investigation altogether.

11. Because when it is known publicly that -Roya

Reddy Row, the person who has made the elaim :on-

the bond in. question which is challenged as a forgery,

and for which heis bound over to take his trial at-the
next sessions has, notwithstanding, the support ‘of the -
commissioners ; that the law officers of government:

have been directed  to prosecute those who have given

information against him, and that he is. a .confidential .
servant of his Highness the nabob Azim :at Dowlah,
we canpot but entertain. the. most alarming appre=:
hensions, that all evidence from natives by which the-
forgeries can be brought,to light, will be entively

Jost.
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-12. It is- well known that the natives of this place
are of a mild and timid disposition, and that the 'ver\; »
idea of acontest in any way with persons in hich
sltuations, whether liuropeans or natives, is at 311~
<imes suificient to deter them from comini@; forward
even where their own immediate interests are con-,f »
cerned, much less so can they be expected to volun-
teer their evidence in a matter wherein those interests
perhaps, may notbe at all implicated. ’

‘We have the honour to be ‘with o1 >
Honourable Sir, hgreat respect,
o Your most obedient servants,
{Sigred) BENJAMIN ROEBUCK.
THOMAS PARRY.
WILLIAM ABBOTT.

No. IIL

: v Fort St. George, September 17th, 1808,
o :
Tke Governor’s Reply to Messrs. Benjamin Roebuck,
- Thomas Parry, William Abbot. o

I Gen(il:lemen,

»tam directed by the honourable the Governor i
Council to ‘acknowledge the receipt. of yof::eigf;- i)r;‘
the:20th’ ultimo, in which you have informed' the
Governor in Council, that you had been appointed to "
watch over the -interests of certain creditors of the’
late nabobs of the Carnatic, and in which you have
stated objections to  the proceedings which it hag’
been judged advisable to adopt, with regard to certain’
persons, (of the description of creditors) who are sup;
posed to have been eéngaged in transactions of an illicit
nature, and against whom a’ prosecution'is in conse-
quence about to be instituted, =~ .
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I'lie Governor in Council must be entirely precluded
from acknowledging you in the capacity of the agents
| of creditors who have not subseribed the paper which
you have addressed to the governor, or who have not
individuaily authorized it.. Without however going
at present into a farticr discussion of the circum-
stances which way have attended your nomination,
the Governorin Council considers it sufficient to state,
with reference to the professed object of your letter,

thatif as

individual creditors, you have reason-to be-.
lieve that the commissioners for the investigation of

the Carnatic claims had not sufficient grounds for the
recommendation which has led to the prosecution of
which you have complained, means will be used te
obta:n satisfaction on that point.

. The Governor in Council has no reason to doubt
that the whole of the proceedings in question has'been
" founded on the most correct principle ; and that its ac~
* curacy will be sufficiently evinced by any farther expla-
" nation which may take place. But it being at the same
" time the wish of the Governor in Council that all per-
sons whose claims may be liable to the consideration
of the . commissioners, should have the full benefit of
the comptrolling authority vested in. the supreme
government, I am directed to acquaint you that ap-
plication will be made to the commissioners for copies
‘of all papers connected with the question agitated in
- your letter, and that copies of those papers with a copy
of your letter will be submitted to the right honour-
.able the Governorin Council,if you should be desirous
* that this course should be adopted. L
1 am, Gentlemen, - .
Yourmost obedient servant,:
e (Signed) G. BUCHAN,:
... Examined. - Chief Secretary toGovernment.
(Signed) Ep, H. WooDpcoCKE, = e U
. Fixed Examiger, . .

To George Buchan, [gq. chicf Secreta

“consequence about to be commenced.
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No. IV.

Fort 8t, George, September 26th, 1805,

“From the same Agents in continuance to the Gover-

 por in Co_uncil, stating the private interest which the
- Law aglvxsers of the Government have in the ap-
- proaching Trials. : ’

ry to Governe
ment, :
Sir, o
We have the honour to -acknowledge the receipt of
your letter of the 17th-instant, in which you inform
us that we had stated to the hounourable the Governor

~in Council,certain objections to the proceedings which

it had ‘been judged‘advi‘seable to-adopt with regard'ta
certain persons. (of the description of creditors) who

aresupposed to have been engaged in transactions of

an illicit nature, and against whom a prosecution is in

“In reply to this part of ydu.r letter we beg ]eav‘e" to

--—vs)b‘s:}eryve‘v that on reference to our address of the 20th
- ultimo we do mot find any objections of the nature to

which you allude, nor do we know of any prosecutions
about to be entered into of the description’ you men-

- tioh.

- "T'he circumstances which we were desirous of bring-

ing under the consideration of government was alto-
gether of a different complexion; a prosecution com-
menced by the law officers of government in their of-
ficial capacity not against persons of the description of

x .

“creditors of thelate nabobs of the Carnatic, but against :'

two witnesses who had given informations before ‘the
sitting magistrate, on which certain - persons had been .
bound over to take their trial at. the ensuing sessions
for having forged or being concerned in the forgery of %

S

AN S ST
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st bond from his late highness the nabob, Omdell ul
. Omrah for a large sum of money, a proceeding into
which we thought it probabie government might inad-
vertently have been led, and which we were appre-
hensive might, on the grounds we then stated, be
attended with consequences injurious to the interests
of the fair creditors as well as those of the honourable:
the East India Company. : S

This, sir, was the fact to which we deemed it in-:
cumbent on us to call the attention of government,
and 1in doing so we were far from intending to blame-
or implicate any person whatever. T

‘We did not presume to question whether the com-
missioners appointed to investigate the claims on the-
‘late nabobs of the Carnatic had or had not sufficient
grounds for the recommendation.-which led to thepro-
secution of the two witnesses.in question, -We:were
aware that those gentiemen are not-in any way under
the control of the government of Fort St..George,-
‘and that they have full power to adopt any measure
which may appear to them to be best calculated fo
tarry the duties of their office into effect; they there-::
fore had no doubt a right to select any person they -
thought proper to carry on the prosecution they con-::
sidered it expedient to institute against the partiesin
question, but we humbly conceive it was by no means
necessary that the iaw officers of government 2n their
official capacity, should have been ordered. to conduct
the prosecution. No attempt was made by the parties -
prosecuted, to endanger the interest of the fair creditor,
by imposing on the-commissioners a spurious claim,
On the contrary they had given evidence against a .
claim which they state'to be of that, description:
should it appear hereafter their evidence is not true, ;

mands are just will not be injured; on the other hand o
should the bond which has been opposed ultimately. .
prove to be a forgery, the fair creditor, and the hos ;
nourable ‘Fast India company will derive considerable
benefit from the testimony of the parties now proses

the fund appropriated for the relief of those whose.de- .
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their orders.

cited by the law officers of government and underl'

Before we use the freedom of availing ourselves of
the indulgence offered: by government of applying to
the commissioners for copies of all the papers having
reference to_the subject of our former letter, we have’
to request they will be pleased to favour us with a
copy of such observations as may have been made on
it-by the advocate general, to whom we understand

it has been submitted; in order that we may have an

opportunity of replying to them, and that the whole
affair may be brought forward in a regular manner
to the notice of the right honourable the Governor

general, and ultimately to the parliamentary commis~

sioners, and the honourable the court of divectors, -

"We are the more anxious on this point, as we have

same reason to believe that the report of ‘the advocate

general is not a-ltoge‘ther‘.-freei from inaccuracies and

misrepresentations, -

:;‘Tnfone!.pgri*ﬁCulal_'; we ' know, he has mis-stated the
he has said, alluding to the witnesses before

fact, and
menﬁo;‘_negl; 'that_ Mr. P_arry has become bail for them,.
to take'their trial at the approaching sessions for per-
jury. - . ! - per-

" Mlll. ‘Parry is not bail for these two wi‘tnessés, nor
as he any connection with or knowledee of
whatever. ' WS g Qf,ther‘n

In our address to government we abstained from re-
marking on thesituation in which the advocate general-
was placed in consequence of having stated himself to .
be a creditor of the late nabobs of the Carnatic; a fact: -
which we understood to have been known to all the -

members of ngel’nnlent,,_’arid.which,_ we did suppose.

might ha_vQ been a sufficient reason for considering
him not altogether a fit person to give an opinion. on .-

3o

3
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any matter in which the interests of the creditors in
general are concerned.

1t is a notorious fact that Mr. Anstruther cannot
possibly be a creditor of the late nabobs of the Car-
natic in his own right, and that if he actually be a
creditor, it must be as aspeculator.,

1t is also generally believed that many of the pur-
chases in which he is concerned, and which are sup-
posed to be to a large amount, have been made
through Reddy Row, the person we have already had
occasion so frequently to mention, or on his recommen-
‘dation; and it therefore may be fairly inferred, that he
feels more than common interest in the prosecutions

which are now depending.

'We have thought it necessary tostate these circum-

- stances for the information of the board, because we

conceive, that although they may have understood

- generally that Mr. Anstruther was a creditor of thelate:

nabobs of the Carnatic, we do not suppose they can

~ have been acquainted with the nature and description
* of his claims. :

"In consequence of your having informed us by your
‘letter of the 17th instant, that the honourable the
Governor in Council does not think proper to recognize
us as a committee for the bona fide creditors of;the late
nabobs of the Carnatic, we now take leave to present
ourselves individually as such.

'We have the honour to be, Sir,
Your most obediznt humble servants,
(Signed) BENJAMIN ROEBUCK.

THOMAS PARRY. :

WILLIAM ABBOT.

G5

| NoV

Fort St. 'Gekdrge,‘ 5th Qct. 1808,

PUBLIC DEPARTMENT.

 proceed,

Governor's Reply "t’:ﬁréé;te‘ning these Genﬂ}éiﬁéxi if the.y"

To Messrs Bemamm ;I;i;oébuck, . Thomés | P,a'm;yv ) and

. ‘William Abbot.

>'G.entlenien,~.-j L

1T f:'éiﬁ directed by the 1;01{91'@16 the Governor in
Louncil to acknowledge the receipt of your letter, of

the 26th ultimo,

g;?'-?T he Governor in Council thinks it unnecessary to

of the jllicit transactions, which were alluded toin

the le Iressed to. you on. ‘the17th'wltimo; or:of
o : of

the proceedings which those transactions may render
it expedient to adopt, as the explanation does not ap-
pearessential, .0 .o roa

3. The particular object of the. letter addressed: to
youap the 17th ultimo, was for the purpose of making
known to you, that if you should have any cause . for
questioning the propriety of thelmeasures adopted by the:
commuissioners for investigating theCarnatic claims,the:
Governor in Council was present to afford any assist-
ance that might be necessary in: bringing the subject
l_xg‘gler;tha notice of the :autherities, which are legaily;
infitled to: take cognizance of questions of that na-
ture.—The Governor in, Council however observes in

.your present letter, that you disayow an: intention of -
rging into question the grounds- of the recommens.

dation of the commissioners which ‘have formed' the
K

- present into a further explanation of the nature
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subject of your recent communications; but that you
have thougzht it necessary' to question the propriety
ofthe orders of the Covarnor in Council expressly
founded on that recommendation, ‘

4. The Governor 1n Council has attentively reviewed
the proceedings connected with the subject, and it
appears manifestly estahlished fiom the facts which
have been stated, that no other course could have
been taken than that which has been adopted, on
the recommendation of the commissioners représsing
the dangerous efforts which have been made to ob-
struct the cause of their enquiry, and to place in difs
ficulty the persons instrumental in facilitating its
progress.——-In these circumstances the Governor in
Council must necessarily consider the tenor of your
communications to be in - the ‘highest degree impro-
per.

5. The Governor in Council ‘considers the mode in
which you presume to discuss the ‘proceedings of the
government, and your application- for the official
paper to which you allude, to. be an-aggravation of
your disrespectful conduct. The explanation con-

veyed in the letter addressed to you on the 17th
-ultimo, was founded on distinct grounds, -and was

unconnected with any reference to that paper, (to
which it is. proper to notice thatyou could have had
no regular “means of access).and the Governor in
Council must therefore consider your observati (
that point to be'irrelevant to the professed ol

your letter, - -

6.1 am directed to- repeat, that if there i any

matter of real or supposed objection connected ‘with

the proceedings -of -the commissioners, which you
may be desirous of bringing under the notice of the
constituted authorities, the: Governor in Council will

afford:.every degree of facility  that ‘may be requisite

in. promoting that ép‘ul'pose? but on the ‘other ha_xfld;iiié% :
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is proper {o apprize you, that any farther: acts of
wanton' obstruction to these proceedings,: or of dis-
respect to the:autherity of the government . will not.
fail to experienice the severest effects of public “dis<.
pleasure, L .
SN I am; Gentlemen, ... : . . ..
‘Youf' most: obedient servant,
-(Signed) G. BUCHAN, - -
C Chief Sec. to the Government;:
o Examined, .0 o dr oty
{Signed) J. PRATT. = =~ '

" Fort’St George, 83d ;_ljecémBéri 1608,

E TheAgenfS replyto George Buchéh, . Esq. , c‘hvie'f»,»

Secretary to Government. .

1. However desirous we might have been of replying
to your letter, of the 5th:of October; to Mr. Roebuck
ah‘g ourselves, in order to remove as fir a8 we possibly
could. ‘the -unfavourable -impressions which the ho-
nourable the Governor i Council appeared fo have re-
ceived regarding our conduct as to the communications
we had ‘deeméd ‘it incambent: on us’to make: #h our
addresses of the 20th of ‘August: and. 26th September
last :iwe considered it adviseable to wait the result of
the trials; which: were té take place -at: ‘the" October
gessions, before wetintruded ourselves:again on their

notice.:

9. We are indeed‘miuch contertied: to find fropd your

letter that our former communications had been cons
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sidered  disrcspectful and: improper.. We beg. leaye
most solemnly to declare that nothing could be far-
ther from our intentions than to offend: government,
or bring forward improper information to their notice;
for them and for their acts, we have that high respect,
to which from those, who live. under their authority,
and enjoy ‘their. protection, they:are so justly en-
itled. . oo , ‘
3. In answer to the last paragraph of . your letter
we trust we shall stand. excused for:observirig that
we are apprehensive some communications * not
founded in truth have been made to government, as
to the motives which influenced our conduct, and
which have drawn forth-the expressions which we
cannot but consider severe, and which we know we
have not deserved.

4. We request you will assure theHonourable the Go-
vernor in Couneil, that we have not in any way, either
directly or indirectly obstructed the proceedings of the
commissioners appointed to-investigate the “claims.on

the late Nabobs of the Carnatic, . i .-

5. Itis true‘ that Mr. Abbot waited 'fréquenﬁy on

" the commissioners, anxious torgive: them- information

respecting the claim which had heen preferred- before
them by Reddy Row, which he believed: to] be'a. for-
gery, but hei'was not- aware that he. thereby:in. any
way obstructed ‘their.pmeee@ings; el F b o,
~ 6. Mr. Parry had - the hoheur :6f appearing 'before
the commissioners only once on ‘the subject: of: the
¢laim in question, and. ke attended “at their: own ze-

quest.” . Heé hasnot.either direetly or indirectly ip«

terfered or communicated with them further vespecting
it. ' ' . ' BRI

, l7.'er.j?RoebuL‘kr;weabelie\fe,;:ha&nev,er;aﬁtgﬁdﬁd !ghe
commissionersi to, be examined, < o g ELE S
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8. We shall now take theliberty of stating for the
information of government, the result of the prose-
cution, which we thought it incumbent on us'to bring
under their notice, in our letter of the 20th August.

9.The bills of indictment preferred by. the law of-
ficers of government at the instigation of the commis-
sioners against Beamah Row and Arnachilla Row for
forgery, were thrown out by the grand jury. o

- '10. Roya Reddy Row and Anunda Row have been
found guilty of “comspiracy to defraud the: private
creditors of the late nabobs of the Carnatic, and the
honourable the East India Company, by means  of
a bond forged by them of the late Nabob Oomdul ul
Omrah. .~ S0 o

11, And a' bill of indietment has been: found; by
the grand. jury ‘against Roya Reddy Row, and Mr.
J. Battley, secretary to his highness the nabob Azim
ul Dowlah, for a conspiracy and fraud, and another
bill of indictment against the ‘said Mr. J. Battley for
perjury, which  bills of indictment lie over for trial at

the ensuing sesions.. -

12. We hope that the honourable the Governor in
Council will now be satisfied that RoyaReddy Row and
the parties with whom he is connected are not persons
deserving of that support which has been given tothem.

W e oo We havethe homour to be, -
’ . Sirﬁg\f:‘ : ': ) v ’
Your most obedient humble Servants,
(Signed) .- THOMAS PARRY.
o WILLIAM ABBOT.

,,,,,,,
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No. VII.

plicition from the Agent of Paupiah-to the Coms

Aggiélssi‘oners for the Nabob’s Debts for ‘Copies-of the

Proceedings before them in the Claim of  Roya
Reddy Row. HEERE

Williarh Parker, S:T: Goad, and Henry Russel, Es-:
lulires,»Commi'ssion-ers for investigating the Debts
of thelate Nabobs. = LR Tdeed W

- -Gentlemen, - _ R R T
"It may be necessary in the prosecution by Paupx_a}tl{‘i"
apainst Reddy Row and Anunda Row, - that I should
have copies of the proceedings- before you in respect’
of Roya Reddy Row’s claim against the nabob }';lls-_
assignee of Gopal Row. You will therefore have the
goodness-to fuinish me with them, or I will thank
you to inform me of your refusing to doso. -

I.am, e s
~Your most obedient servant,.
(Signed) ~ WILLIAM LIGHT
September 14th, 1808, e

L S

No. VIIL

Ansﬁ;er of the Commissioners tefusing Mr. kLight’s‘

~ Requests. . .

“Sir,

We beg feat"s;é,‘-‘“tfo"a‘cknowlege the recelpt of youxf

letter of the 14th mstant EEI e
'Having publicly ' recorded - our opinion, t e
Chargzlg% fsrgery {edged by Paupiab against Reddy
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Row and Anunda Row is malicious and false, and
having in consequence recommended the adoption
of legal measures against the author and -abettors -of
that charge, we do not think it our duty - voluntarily
to afford- any facility to Paupiah, either by. the pro-
duction of papers or otherwise, in respect to - the.pro-
secution which he in his turn has instituted in the
same manuér against Reddy Row and Aununda Row, -

" We must therefore decline furnishing you an your
mere application with any papers in furtherance of
the prosecution against Reddy Row and Anunda
Row; but should the proceedings mentioned in your
letter be legally. demandable from . us, you will of
course- know what means to employ to obtain them, -
S Weare, Sir, . o
- Your most obedient servants, ..
. (Signed) . WILLIAM PARKER,
Cooecn oo STYGOAD,
Office of commissioners o T
for investigating the Car=
natic debts,Fort St.George,
September 15th 1808,

No.IX.

Names of the ,G.fand J ury,who found the bill against
w50 Reddy Row.:. October 31st, 1808;. ... -

AndrewScott,Esq. foreman  Charles Wynon
4 H.D. Ogilvie "« . . Arthur Brooke

Francis A. Grant James Taylor
Wm. Thackeray .. . GeorgeMoote . " .
‘GeofgeStrachey .~ ** © " 'Wm. Wayte -~
John Henry Pelle - John Babington -~~~
doseph Dacre .~ . . . Frederick H. Bruce and
James Munro ~ . George Hay,

4
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No. X,

Copy Letter from Hussam Ul Mulk, to Six Thomas -

~ Strange, Chief Justice, relative to the trial of Roya
“Reddy Row. v v

(After the usual compliments.)

I have received two subpeenas from the supreme
court requiring my attendance with the accounts,

&c. during the administration of Anwar A’lveg"K_han,‘ ‘
late Amildar of the Soobah of Arcot, during the space.

of one month and twenty-seven .days in the year

1207, Fuslee.  'As T have been indisposed for one

month, T have sent the accounts in my possession by
Madhoo Row,. Serishtadar of Arcot; and the in-
closed paper under my seal and signature contains a
statement of circumstances respecting -@hg account of
the money received during the administration. of
Anwar Alee Khan, for your mnformation. :

Seal,

Hu,_s,sém Ul 1
Mulk..

The circumstances respecting the accounts of the

whole receipts of the money received during the
administration of Anwar-Alee Khan are ‘these. In

the year 1207, Fuslee, when on fhe*i‘embv{fl’*of' Ar‘iw?ﬁﬁf
Alee Khan the Soobah ' of Arcot was intrusted to.my
charge by his highness the Nucomb Qomdul ul* Omra

Syyid Moortaza Hoosyn Khan by my directions had’

the said account prepared for me by Anunda Row
and Appro Row Serishtadars of Anwar’ Alee Khan

and sent it with their 8ignatures affixed'théreto to me, -

The account does' niot bear the seal of "A“ﬁwar Alee’

Khan, because he was at that time in“the presence,

Bt
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The account has been with me till now, except that’
four months ago at the request ‘of Reddy Row,
Mootoosuddie of the said account, I sent it to him
by the hands of Meer Talib Alee Khan and Syyid
Yeckim. Inthat account the loan of Gopal Row  to
the amount of thirty-five thousand pagodas is not
entered. The copy of it under my signature, which

isin the possession of Madhoo Row, Serishtadar of
Arcot, is conformable to the original.

Dated 215t of Rumuzan, A. H. 1223.

Memorandum to serve as an explanation of the above
Letter of Hussam Ul Mulk.

‘Roya Reddy Row stated in his -information upon
oath before the commissioners that his claim was
founded upon a loan of 35,000 pagodas to Anwar
Alee Khan, the renter of the Arcot district in the year
1797 for account of the Circar by Gopal Row. In
support of this allegation, anaccount was produced
from the dufters, purporting to be the account of
Anwar Alee Khan rendered to the Circar, inwhich
this pretended loan by Gopal Row was entered. Gn
the part of the prosecution it was contended that this
account was a fictitious one;—that in fact Anwar
Alee Khan néver did render any accounts of his
management to the Circar, that he only continued
renter fifty-seven days, was then turned out and was
succeeded in the rentership by Fusam Ul Mulk ;
that Hussam Ul Mulk made up - the -accounts of
Anwar Alee Khan's management, as well as his own,
and transmitted them to Hussam Ul Mulk, and that
there was no entry whatever of . this loan in Anwar
Alee Khan’s account, nor any mention of- money
transactions with Roya Reddy Row or Gopal Row.
It was’ likewise alleged that Roya Reddy Row had
borrowed | these accounts from Hussam Ul Mulk,
at some time before the  commissioners commenced
their investigation of -claims, and from  them  had

: . L
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fabricated the false accounts in which the loan to
Anwar Alee Khan was introduced. The true ac-
counts never were restored to Hussam Ul Mulk,
but he fortunately had two sets ot them, of which
Roya Reddy Row most probably was ignorant.  To
prove these allegations Hussam Ul  Mulk was
subpeenaed upon the trial, hut instead of obeying the
summons he wrote wpon thethird or fourth day of the
trial a letter to the Chief Justice of which the accom-
panying is a faithful translation. Hussam Ul Mulk
Serestadar Madhoo Row attended with the true
accounts, and was competent tc prove them, but the
admission of these accounts in evidence was strenu-
ously opposed by the counsel for the defence, and
refused by the Chief Justice. Had they been ad-
mitted and believed by the jury, they would them-
sclves have convicted the defenders of the forgery.

L T No XL

Letter from the Agents for the Creditors to the
Printer of the Madras Gazette requesting him to
- obtain permission of the Government to print the
trials of Roya Reddy Row, and Anunda Row,

To the Editor of the Madras Gazette Press. -

Ptig

““As the trial of Roya Reddy Row and Anunda
Row for conspiring to defraud the East India Com-
pany and the private creditors of the Nabobs of the
Carnatic by means of a forged bond, &c. &c. has en-
‘gaged the ‘atténtion. of the public in an extraordinary
degree; and asit must be an’ object of considerable
interest to the Fast India Company, to the coms-

5

missioners for investigating the debts of the Carnatic,
and to the private creditors in’ England, we are de-
sirous to publish the same, and accordingly we re-
quest the favour of you to obtain the 'pei‘,missic’in;()f
the honourable the Governor in Council to print it at
your press, from notes which we caused to be care-
tully taken of the evidence, and we will thank you to
let us know the price, and in what time it can be
printed.
We are,
Sir, .
’ - Your most obedient servant
L (signed) ~ ABBOT and MAITLAND,
Fort St. George, - '
9th January, 1809.

s
No. XIL.

Letter to the Printer of the Madras Gazette from the ‘

Chiet Secretary of Government refusi m ¢
o : , sing per
to print the trials, g€ permission

Public Department.

o the Editor of the Madras Gazette,
Sir, ‘ o v | |

The" application df Messrs. Abbot and Maj
for permission ‘to-publish the trials of E%ygiﬁgggd
Row and Anunda Row, having been submitted to th)(;
Honourablethe Governor in Council, I have been direct..
ed to acquaint you that the Governor in Council deems
it inexpedient to sanction the proposed publjcation. -
o ) Iam, ke
. Yourmost obedient servant.
. (signed) N,

o (gl o G.BUCHAN,
FotSt.Ceorgs, o Covernment.
11th January 1809,
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No. XIII.
Letter from the Agents for. the Creditors to the
- Commmissioners for the Nabobs debts residing and
~acting in London. In which are stated various cir-
~ cumstances of the forgeries of Reddy Row—the in-
terference of ‘government, and the .interest of the
-Law Officerson the trials. '

AMadras, 14th January, 1809.

To the Commissioners for investigating the debts of
the late Nabobs of the Carnatic, London.

* _ Gentlemen, _ ’

1. You will no doubt have heard when this reaghes»
you of the enormous and preposterous amount of the
claims preferred before the commissioners in India.
You will, therefore, not be surprised to hear that re-

“sistance has been made to suspicious claims, notwith-

standing they may have been supported by very pow-
‘erful interest. L

2. Theaccompanying packet, which we beg leave
to recommend to your attentive perusal, will make you
acquainted with our proceedings hitherto.

3. . In addition-to the information contained in the
accompanying documents, we beg leave ‘to state to
you, what we could not properly  introduce into the
meémorial, that regarding more particularly the con~
‘duct of the commissioners in India. :

4. ‘iitiappeaféd‘fr‘oim‘th'ewéxa'mjriéftioﬁ of Mr. B‘"odle

upon the trial, that the only claim which Roya Reddy

Row Lgadé}pontb@ ngbob was for a balance of pagodas
1233

87,703 : 233 20, upon an openaccount current, which

claim was"assigned over to Duttijer Morleapah, and

i

by him forwarded to Mr. Fordyce through Mr.
Brodie. .

5. Mr. Brodie further deposed, - that when: the
claim was forwarded through him, he understood it
was the only one which Roya Reddy Row had, and in
fact, he had no bonds from the nabob whatsoever.—
But that at a subsequent period other claims upon
bonds were forwarded through him by persons acting
asattornies for Roya Reddy Row, which struek him
as something so mysterious that he took copies of the
assignments and powers ofattorney. ‘

6. Roya Reddy Row had no bonds, was confirmed
by another witness, Zurial Row, who was present
shortly after the present nabob ascended the Musnud,
when Roya Reddy Row submitted the above men-
tioned open account current to the nabob, Ppressing
him to use his interest with the company to release‘a
quantity of paddy which  had been assigned over to
him in the Tinnivelly country by Omdul Ul Omrah, as
security for his debt, and which had been seized by
government - when . the country was ceded to it by
treaty, and representing his deplorable condition, that
he had no other securities for his balance but the above
mentioned paddy. :

7. It was likewise corroborated by the evidence
of Chinniah Moodelliar, who more than eleven months
after the death of Omdul Ul Omrah, and when Roya
Reddy had beenconcealing himself, shut upin his house
for some months inorder to elude a writ of bailable pro-
cess laid out against him by Venaigum Moodelliar for
a debt of pagodas 15,500, interposed his friendly me-
diation, and advised Roya Reddy Row to satisfy Ve.
naigum by giving him some security for his debt. He
suggested to him_that 'he should mortgage to Venai-
gum some of his nabob’s bonds if he had any as secu-
rity, when Roya Reddy Row unequivocally declared
to him thathe hadnone, = v T T
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8th. Notwithstanding 'this Roya Reddy Row has
preferred claims, independant of the balanceof the open
account current, to the amount of pagodas 304,042, 17;
40, of which we inclose a memorandum. And it ap-
peared upon thetrial, and whatis more extraordinary,
itappeared from Roya Reddy Row’s own showing,
that the balance of pagodas 87,703, 23, 40, due'to him
by the nabob wag ‘made up of several'sums which he
had borrowed from differentsoucars: and he pretend-
ed that he had received during thelife time of the Omul,
bonds in ‘the name of  the several ‘soucars for ‘the
amount of their respective demands; that with' these
bonds he had satisfied these creditors, and his ‘balance
of pagodas 87,703, 23, 20, was notwithstanding
claimed by his pretended assignee Duttajee Morleah,
sothat by his own showing upon the trial it appeared
at least, ‘that this balance was claimed twice over.
However incredible this may appear to you, and that
this defence should be- c"ond‘ucteg by ‘the law officers
of the:company, openly assisted by the commission-
ers, yet you will be satisfied of the truth of it when
you read the trial which we are endeavouring to get
published here,and which at-any rate you shall receive
i manuscript if we cannot obtain permission to print
i L St S hE :

9. Independent of these two sums, viz. the balance
of the open account pagodas 87,703 23 20, and the
soucars bonds, viz. Moorli Doss, pagodds 6000, Colgor
Vincata Narrain, 4000, Visvinada Tawker 21,400, Vi-
naigum 15,000, Verdarajah 5700, ‘Ramchieu Derput
5000, -Duttajer Mootlapah 25,800, Praboo Doss
3,300, Boojunga Row 1000, whichif they are not for-
geries, ought to represent, and were given in payment
of the above balance, youwill see that thisman claims as

above stated pagodas 314,042 1740, of which pagodas

176,954 17 40, is stated to-have been lent to the nabob
in the course of the month of June immediately pre=
ceding his death, and after he had been declared to b_'_q
past recovery.© Mr. Cockburn; who was at Madras at

9.

the time, can acquaint his colleagues in what state the
nabob was, and whether he believes it possible that:a
native of India conversant in all the transactions:of the
Durbar, would lend to.the nabob upon-his-death beil
the enormous snm of pagodas 176,954 1740 without
other security thanhis simple bonds. Wearepersuaded
that Mr. Cockburn would not believe such a thing if
five hundred living witnesses -should depose to the
truth-of it, and if five thousand written documents
should start up. from: the Dufters to support it. * The
bonds being in different names: argues- nothing either
way, for Mr. Cockburn can inform you this is a com-
mon practice among the natives that they may not ap-
pear to possess much wealth of their own.

© 10. Venaigum 'is prosecuting Roya Reddy Row
2nd Mr. Batley for the fraudand conspiracy in passing
upon him the pretended fraud for pagodas 15,500. The
othersoucars are in the interest of Roya Reddy Row,
gained over no doubt by a promise of getting théir
bonds passed by the commissioners. e

11. Excessive as the amount of these fraudulent
claims is, it is atrifle, a mere nothing compared to thé
whole amount of bonds that this man is said to have
forged orgiven certificates for. 'We are informed, and
we have reason to believe, that the bonds sold by him
and by his recommendation to the law officers and
their associates, viz. Mr. George Arbuthnot, Messrs,
Binny and Dennison, the late Mr. Walter Grant, Doc-
tor ‘Andrew- Berry, Mr. George Hallyburton, -and

- others, although none are claimed in the names of the

law officers amount to sixteen or seventeen lacks: of
pagodas. = Mr. Orme alone claims upon bonds amount-
1ng to0 611,000 pagodas, on account of the estate of the
tate Mr. Walter Grant, the whole of which were pur-
chased from Roya Reddy Row and Anunda Row ‘con-
victed as they are, have been left at large now: near
seven weeks, which time has  been employed by them
in suborning witnesses for a new trial’ if granted, and
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for Mr. Batley’s trial. . Thesessions is at present ad-
Jjourned toMonday the 16th, when the chiefjustice is

to pronounce ‘whether he will commit them to jail,
or by a further exercise of his own discretion, suffer -

them to remain at large.

12, -We'sa,y nothitlg of'the bond in favour of Go=
pal Row for 88,500 pagodas,becauseweare persuaded

that'a trial of sixteen days and a verdict of an English -

Jury will stamp its discredit for ever, notwithstanding
all the endeavoursof the law officers to upholdit.”

13. We have just heard from the printer that go--

vérnment has refused him permission to print the trial,
we'shall therefore send it in manuscript to be printed

in London. ~ We annex acopy of our correspondence

regarding it.* This is a singular circumstance.

‘1;'4. Aradaumim Paupiah Braminy who c0mméﬁcéd

the prosecution against Roya Reddy Row, died on the -
10th instant, Roya Reddy Row and his party-arenow

using all ‘their -endeavours to buy over some of the' .
witnesses ‘who.appeared against him on' the former"

trial. - This seems to be their only hope, and to effect” -
what they have in view, nothing will be left undone -
that money and the most powerful influence and inter~ -

est.canaccomplish. - -

15, We shall not trespass upon your. time farther -

at present, and we' sincerely hope that such-measures -
will be taken in this country as will prevent the ne- -

cessity of troubling youagamn. - i

You will perhaps be surprised tohearthat after two- -
more successive adjournments ofthe sessions, viz. from
the 16th instant to the 17th, and-from the 17th to this '
day;:the ¢hief justice has-this-day disposed of the two -
motions before liim, where the one on - the part of the ™

. 18th Januar‘y,1809 :
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defence for a new trial he has ruled that i£~oggil t.to.be

argued in term, the other on the part of the prosecution

for the commitment of the defendants he has dis-
charged, declaring his resolution to leave them'at
large upon their recognizance, without assigning any
one reason for. such measure, or stating any. one cirs
cumstance in the, case of ?i;gkd ' that e /
them to.such extraordinary indulgence, but simply
asserting . his right and power.to doso. Thus.two
men convicted upwards of seven weeks ago of a crime’
for which in England they would before now  have
suffered a capital punishment are left at liberty, an
apparent example to the natives of-the inefficacy of
our laws in this country when opposed by wealth,
power, and inflyence. We shall not now be surprised
if all the native witnesses for. the prosecution of
Reddy Row, as well those that give testimony
upon the late trial, as those summoned. for the ap-
proaching one should abscond, seeing the powerful
protection that he enjoys, and fearing thence the effects
of his vengeance for daring to depose the truth against
him. Living as youdo, gentlemen, in a country where

the laws are equally and impartially administered to

all ranks of people, you can have no conception how-

little the natives of the East confide in them. For-

some time anterior to, and during the trial of -Reddy
Row their uniform language was, that there was no
doubt of the man’s guilt, nor of his having committed

many other forgeries and frauds, but that enjoying

the favour and protection of the commissioners, the
law officers of the company, the nabob and the go-
vernment, we should never be able to convict him ;
when however we did convict him, notwithstanding
the_ weight of influence that we had to contend
against, their opinion and language began to.change,

they began to understand the 1importance of a trial-by.
Jury,and to venerate.it. .But: now, alas 'a.n:,thaﬁ-:~tfllé;§b v

find . that 2 man may be tried .and convicted by ajuyy:

andstill appear to escape the, penal -consequencas,of

‘his guilt, they recur to their original and native belief,
M

efendants - that entitle. -
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that every thing is determined with us as with themn,
by powerand influence.
- Our ‘able “and eloquent counsel Mr. Marsh, upon
whose talents and exertions in' the conduct” of these
trials; too much praise cannot ,bg:bef§tqwe§‘,1 b%s;iad‘-
vised “and given notice, that he shall move the court
on Monday the 23d, for leave to petition the King lm
council in appeal from the interlocutory 'qugil“ 9&{ e
court having these'men at large. *As the trial of }IISatdey
for perjury comes on the 24th, we'‘shall close this dis-
patch now, and advise you the success »9f3 our motjon

In 2 separate letter.

- We have the honour'to be,
. You 'G‘éntle_me(lix», thumble servants
" "Your niost obedient humble se ,
o ol 2 mos(signed) THOMAS PARRY.
7 W.ABBOTT, , .
- Ru A, MAITLAND,

U NoXIV. .

Letter fromthe Agents for the creditors, to the creditors
" of the Nabob in England, containing a list Of the

special jury on the trial of Mr. Batley, aﬂd_‘~ other
- gircumstances of the trial. :

.~ Fort St. George, 2d ‘Eebrliﬁryg 1809.

S & t emen,: S e ey sy 4 .~ .” ;"xv‘q'l-" __\
fiwg?ge%gmiegw)é‘fﬁ" inform’ you that M. Jolin Bat%ég,
secretary to his highness the Nabob Azem ul Dowlah,
against Whom; we’stated to-you-in our- letter o H
0th ultimo, that a bill of indictment ggg_iﬁpqe;} foun
by:the grand jury at the last sessions, for Pty ¢m-
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‘mitted in his evidence given‘on the trial of Roya Reddy
Row and Anunda Row, was this day founid guilty after.
a trial of eight days, by a special jury. summoneg.on.
the motion of thedefendant. .7

A e

Thie names of the jury are mentioned in the anngxs

. We use the freedom of troubling you with this coms<
munication, it being materially connected with the
subject which we found it necessary to bring: to your
notice in our letter 6f the 14th ultimo, inasmuch as it
confirms the verdict against Roya Reddy Row and
Anunda Row:  We have the honour to.be,

" Gentléemen,

Your most obedient,

"7 humble servants,

' Lxstqf the gpééial ;jit'-xry\on the trial of Mr.John Batley.

Mr. M. Jolly
- J. VF; COllls
W. Watts
John Tullock
William Oliver
John Mac Dowall

Mr. W. W. Weston
Edward Dent
“"H. G. Keene
Robert Mackonochie
- Alexander Falconer
~Wm, Hawkins,

PP 4

Ansyier from the commissioners grantinig tHe equest.
w2+ -+ o Messrs. Panry, Abbott, and Maittand: )77 "

R

oy TR gl x
g Gentlemen,

"We have Teceived Your letterdf the 8d instant, "Oup

i
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deférence for the verdict pronounced yesterday by 4
speeial jury induces us to inform you that if your
solicitor will attend at our office with a copyist at

eleven o’clock to-morrow, or ‘any ‘other day, he shall

be at liberty to transcribe the papers mentioned in your

letter. - Weare, Gentlemen, 0o
‘ Your obedient servantsy -~

Office of cemmissioners *(signed) WM. PARKER. -
“for investigating the S ToGOOD.

Carnatic debts, Fort ~~ —~ HENRY RUSSELL.
' St. George, 3d Feb. R
1800,

 No. XVL.

Substance of a letter from the Commissioners fbi‘.exé
amining intothé claims onthe Nabobs of the Carnatic,
to Mr. Buchan, secretary to the Government." -.

Dated Madras, 6th ;Eg:bruéry, ,1809.

Mr. Batley being found guilty of perjury on the prose-
cution,asavowed in Court by their own advocate,Messrs.
Roebuck, Parry, Abbott, and Maitland, in which he

_ had, at our suggestion, been defended by the law-ofs
ficers of the crown, they hoped that the verdict of
the special jury would have satisfactorily established
the validity, or invalidity of the ground on which the
prosecution has been instituted ; but with every degree

of deférence, &c. &c. we do 1iof hesitate to avowthat"

- in the present ipstance the evidence on the trial of Mr.
“Batley, has not, in‘any degree had theeffect of altering
‘our opinions on the merits of the case, or of impairing

the strength of ,our conviction that both-Mr. Batieyand
Reddy Row are ‘entirely innocent of the charges”'on
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which they wereindicted ; under other circumstances

they might net have thought preper to avow this opis
nion; but they are encouraged in the present instanéé
by the similar sentimeunts of the chief justice himself,
the tendency of whose charge was strongly for the'aca
quittal of Mr. Batley: and' he has signified his resé-
lution to submit the two verdicts, with his own report
and observations on the respective trials to the wisdom
and consideration of the king.. .Since the trial, aletter
has been received from Messrs. Parry, Abbott, and
Maitland, for copies of papers with an obscure and
indefinite expression of their intention to proceed to
further prosecution, the object of which is easily con-
jectured. The advocate for the prosecution has dis-
tinctly and unreservedly menaced the commissioners,
that if they shall make a favourable report of the bond

- claimed by Reddy Row tothe commissioners at home,

he would render them the object of a criminal prose~
cution. These trials have impeded our public trans-.
actions, and the further prosecutions with which
we are threatened, or ‘any other measures calcu-
lated to oppose our proceedings, we contemplate as
the complete and effectual obstruction of our official
duty. We therefore distinctly and unreservedly state
to the governor in council that unless measures are
adopted by government to relieve us from embarrass-
ments from persons avowedly the prosecutors,it will be
impracticable for us to proceed with immediate effect,
or with any ulterior success in the discharge of our
duties. We feel that our exertions will beof no'avail
withoutthe aid of governmment,and in this emergency all
our exertions will be rendered nugatory and abortive.

i Theonly :rj‘emaﬂ_; that shall be oﬁ'erec@ibﬁ"thébbyfnn;isé
sidpers’ letter is,that they have not attended’ these trials

on which they have presumed to pass judgment.
Goad attended the greatest part of the first trial, But
little of the second. Parker and -Russell attended

little of the first. trial, and none of the second. - But
the consequence of this letter to government. is,.that
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Mr.Roebuck has been removed from the situations he
held in the company’s service as detailed in the govern«
ment letter. Mr. Maitland who was one of the jus-
tices of the peace, and had committed Reddy Row and
Anunda Row, has been deprived of that office, and
Mr. Parry has been ordered home, .. ... . .

R -

No.XVIL

Letter from the Chief Secretary to Mr. ROebuck,mﬁﬂ

.. Talssing him from ‘all his employments, | "~

S Public Depariment,
To Mr. Benjamin Rocbuck. = =~ ° " 17

*'Tam directed to acquaint you that the honourable
the Govetnorin Council has deemed it proper to appoint
you to take charge until farther orders, of the ‘factory’

of Vizagapatam,and you areordered to proceed: to

that station without delay. =~

~You W_iﬂ transfer the'charge of the office of the mi«
litary paymaster-general to thé'honourable Mr. Murrdy,
and M

t.

L T ST Y oyr 'miost obedjent servanty
Fort St. George, (signed) G.BUCHAN,:
“Sth Peb.1809, - - < - 90 Chief-Sec

SEI

S SR

Mr. Ogilvie hasg;beén appoirited to take charge:of
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L’e‘tfef from Mr. Roebuck to*the‘:Chief‘:Secretary, re<
~‘questing to'know why heis dismissed, and 'petition-
ing to be heard, - v o

To the Chief Secretary of Government.

I have received your letter of the Sth instant with the
utmost surprise and concern, as it conveyed to me the
first intimation of having incurred the displeasure of
the honourable the president in council. My removal
from the two important offices of paymaster-general
and mint-master, the former of which'I have held for
50 many years, and the latter department I have esta~
blished, ‘and in discharging the duties of which, 1 can
conscientiously say I have exerted myself with unre-
mitting zeal to promote the interests of my honourable
employers,is so severe a punishment, so publi¢ a mark
of the disapprobation of government, and so’ painful
a-degradation in the eyes of the public, that, as.I am
conscious of no breach of public duty, I can only im«
pute this heavy misfortune to some extraordiary and
unfounded misrepresentation, or from the malevolence
of my enemies. In this peculiarly distressing situation
I .rely with confidence on the justice of government,
that an opportunity will be afforded me of explaining
or defending my conduct; that I shall not be punishe
unheard; and that a privilege, founded on the im-
mutable principles. of justice, and repeatedly recog-
nisediin the orders.of the honourable the court of di~
rectors, will not, in’ this instance, be withheld from
me. So soon as I received your letter of the 5th Oc-
tober, directed jointly to me with Messrs. Abbott and
Parry, 1 imthediately withdrew myself from all cons
nection with. their proceedings and correspondence,
nor -bave I had any concern in it in the most indirect
manner. I have paid a small sum towards the fees of
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the lawyers, in the two suits, in which verdicts have
been found against the respective parties, but I have no
concern, or have had any intention of having any thing
to do with any other trial; and in these I concerned
myself, because it was of consequence to my pro:
perty. o ' L .
1 have the honour to be,
Sir,

Your most obedient servant,
v (signed) B. ROEBUCK.
Fort St, George, . S .
oth Féb. 1800,

v ,"A C ’.

Letter from the Agents for Creditors to the private
. -Creditors -of the Nabob -in London, stating the
...Punishment of the Juries, the Effects produced by
:~the :late Trials, the Information of Mr.-Barenshaw
-suppressed by -the Madras Government, - and the
.. Mission of  Mr. Saunders to collect Evidence: for
- Government inthe Trials. - - -~ 0 g
G e R .. Madras, 23d March, 1809;

To the Private Creditors of the late Nabob ‘of the
o oo “Carnatic, London. 7 7 o
- ... -Gentlemen, : N A AT e e
" “We take the chance of this letter overtaking the
ships at Bengal to acquaint you with'the proceedings
at this place since our last. © We shall not make any
vemarks upon them, but leave you todraw your own
mferences from them. Mr ¥, A, Grant and Mr: G.
Strachey, who served upon the grand jury that found
the bills of indictment against Batley and Reddy Row,
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‘Mr. W. Hawkins, Mr. W. Oliver,_and Mr. . Keene,
who served upon the-petit jury that tried these de-
fendants, have all been ordered away from Madras,
and appointed to different stations distant from the
presidency, Mr. E. Wood, and some others;, who
‘have hal the manly courage to express their sentiments
regarding the late proceedings, have also been re-
moved. o o '

. Weomitted to notice to you, in our last, that we
‘had ‘written to the Lord Chancellor a particular ac-
count of these triajs, and of the measures of the Chief
Justice regarding them. A term commenced upon the
21st nstant; and we are preparing an affidavit, and a
petition of appeal from the decisions of the Chief Jus-
iice to the King in council, * We beg leave to call your
attention te these proceedings, and to recommend to
you totake such steps ip support of them, as may be in
your power.. Independent of the interest which every
member of civilised society ought to have in the due
execution :of public: justice, the fair creditors of the
Nabeb are particularly interested in seeing the law
carried anto effect. against the defendants; Batley and
Reddy Row. 'They are the sole hope and support of
the forgers, and of those who claim upen. forged
bends.  Had they been enly committed until the
pleasure of his majesty should be known' upon' their
«cases, the whole baud of forgers wouid have disap-

- peared: -:We know that they were prepared to quit

Madzras had the verdicts been followed . up with. judg-
ment. . As it is, we feel confident we have done great
service o the bona fide creditors:. The week before
last twelve or thirteen claims, amounting to more than
£.700,000, were advertised for investigation : - the
bonds upon which the claims were made were cern
tainly very barefaced forgeries, and Reddy Row had
Hio connection with them ; and it ‘was on this account,
perhaps, thatthéy were selected by the commissioners,.

'S
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¢hat they might have the credit of rejecting the claims,
anid the aphsarance of doimg something. Not a single
claimant anpeared to support his claim.

*1n onr letter of the 8th instant to the governor-ge-
neral, vou will see an ailusion to the famous Manar-
“goudly mission.  Tn speaking of the acts of govern-
ment in this country you are aware that weare obhged
to be very cautious, but in truth we did not know at
that time that the instructions to Mr. Sagnders ‘went
so far, at least avowedly, as to direct him to collect
witnesses for the trial. In October last, prior to the
first trial, the law officers of government applied to
Mr. Ravenshaw the collector of Arcot, through the
board of revenue, upon the same subject, Mr. Raven-
shaw made enquiries, and found that Anunda Row
had, in fact, resided in the districts at the time _stated
upon the part of the prosecution, and reported the
same accordingly. There is not in the ‘whole service
a more upright, Honourable man than M. ’I{avens};aw;
he is totally unconnected with thenabob’s ‘creditors,
and, we have since heard from hlm"self; dld not know,
at the time he was directed to make the enquiry, what
Was the motive of it. “His report not being favorable
to the defence, was suppressed by the law. lolfﬁbc_'e‘_rs,ibut
wé got intelligence of it, and the counsel for the prose-
cution related the whole transaction in court, and chal-
lenged the counsel for the defence to produce ‘Mr.

Ravenshaw’s letter, which he of course :declxn’ed; ;“I‘t
as in consequence of this that the law officers of
governtient employed one who was a perfect stranger
in the districts, in preference to one, who from his sn:u-
ation must naturally have been more competent t6 ob-
tain information upon the subject.” The:Amxl_dafréiWhQ
obtained the original information for Mr. Ravenshaw,
has been discharged from his situation by orders ( (}f
government. R

You will have no difficulty, geiiﬂemeﬁskin fo#mi.nsé
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pretty correct estimate of the character of the procecds
ings connected with the late trials. "
We have the honor to be,
Gentlemen,
Your most obedient,
and humble servants,
(Signed) T. PARRY.
W. ABBOTT.
R. MAITLAND,

No. XX-,

-+ Extract of Sir Benjamin Sullivan’s Arguni’eﬁt‘;

.- In regard to the third part of the question; namely;
how the forged bond ought to be disposed of? it was
moved the other day, and perhaps irregularly, as the
proceedings have not been removed, that. it should
‘be lodged with the officers of the court, the bond be-
ing then, and I suppose still is; in the bands of the
commissioners for investigating the Carnatic debts.
The opinion of my lord chief justice, if I understand
him correctly, was that it rested with. those . gentle-
men to deposit the bond in, court or not. as they
should thipk proper.. He said it could .not be in
safer hands than with - the officers of the court, but

_that. they were to use their discretion inthe matter;
. that he would not order it.---His lordship said he con-

sidered the bond, although tainted, to be still an ot
star;ding claim:;; and that notwithstanding the verdict,
wljnch; pronounced it to be a forgery, he .thought the
commissioners were competent to exercise their judg-
ment upon it, and. to recommend it as:-a good and

-valid bond, if they thought proper so.to do, ‘butthat

it would be a dereliction of duty if they suffered the
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verdict to influence their judgment in the investiga}idlai
of that claim. '

This, I think, was the substance of wha@ fell .f}"omf
his lordship; if I bave in any thing misconceived
his meaning, I shall be thankful to him to set me
right---these sentiments fell from him in the warmth
of argument, and I should be extremely sorry to um-
pute them -to him, unless, on reflection, he should
think proper to avow them. But I must withhold
my assent, as they stand at present, and should deem
~ myself unworthy of the place I occupy on this bench,
did I not express my warmest dissent to sentiments
openly delivered, which,if adhered to,seem tome to be
fraught with public inconvenience.

Itis impossible to say what may be the result of
the reference to his majesty ; he may refuse to grant
a pardon altogether ; and it is most likely he will; as
I believe he has never yet been known to parden:the
erime of forgery, and in that event judgment must
not only be pronounced, but the bond cancelled, (3
Tnst.60.) for all prosecutions of forgery bhave twe
objects in view, to defeat the criminal intention of
the offender, where that intention has not already
been carried into effect, and to punish him for the
means he employed to effect it---to inflict the punish-
ment, and yet leave it in his power to effect his cri~
minal intention, would be absurd;-and therefore, i
cases of forgery, the .court commonly takes care, by
cancelling the forged paper, or delivering it up to the
prosecutor for that purpose, that an improper use;
shall not- be made of it; should then a refusal of par-
don be the reference to the crown, where' shall we
look for the forged bond if it be suffered to remain

- with the -commissioners, for these gentlemen act
under instructions from the commissioners in ‘Eng-
land, by whom they are directed to transmit to them
2l bonds upen which any claim is founded ? - Should
his majesty thereforé be advised to adhere to his e«
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solution not to pardon forgery, and orders come out
to us to proceed to judgment, are we to send ‘to
England for the bond ¢ The court ought not
surely to expose itself to this inconvenience; nor to
thefar greater perhaps of rendering future judgment
wholly ineffectual, by seeing thisbond acknowledged
by ‘the commissioners as a judicium, and put in‘a
train of payment—a bond which, after a full defence,
has been pronounced by a.British' Jury to bea for-
gery; and the evidence brought in support of it has
been, by another jury, pronounced to be wilful and
corrupt perjury. Should the commissioners be en-
couraged to venture so far as this—should they be led
to hold the verdicts of two grand juries, and two petit
Juries in such disregard as to declare this bond an
honest and fair claim, shall we be justified in the
eyes of our Sovereign and our ‘country in ‘assisting -to
lead them .into error, by leaving it in' “their power so
to do? Itisour duty, I think, to guard against the
possibility of such a conduct: it is also- our- duty to
await the result ofthe reference to his ‘majesty;and to
have-every thing in readiness to obey the royalorders
s soon-as we receive them : should the king be pleas<
ed sofartoextend his mercy to the offenders as to
grant them a conditional pardon, and the condition be
that the forged bond shall be cancelled, how shall we
carry his orders into execution if the Bond is'not within
our reach-—if it 'is not in our actual custody and
power? ‘Why the officer of - the court was' permitted
to return itto them 1 know not, but by suffering it
to ‘remain in "the hands of the ‘commissioners, we
place ‘ourselves in the situation of not being ~able
to conform to the orders he may think proper to
send to'us; and why draw this inconvenience on our-
selves, when we have it in our power to «void it, by
directing that thie bond be lodged ® with the officer of
the ‘court? T . e

At the same time that'we draw 2 great inconveni
ence on ourselves, by suffering the bond ‘to remain
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in their hands, we expose them to solicitations and
importunities to pass it as a fair demand, which, in my
opinion, ought to be avoided, for these gentlemen are
not placed above the law; their powers of decision
arise solely from the deeds between the company -and
the creditors, which are neither ratitied nor confirmed
by parliament, as is evident from fhe niuth clause of
the act; they are liable, like all other trustees to suits,
for abuse of trust, and should not 1 think be unneces~
sarily exposed to it; nor to the serious inconveni-
ence of admitting in the list of claims, which they are
bound, through the commissioners in England, to lay
before the two houses of parliament at every sessions,
with the grounds . of their decision, that they passed
this bond, or recommended. it to be passed, in direct

opposition to the verdict of a British jury—For

these reasons I am clearly and strongly of opinion
that an order should be made for depositing the bond
with the officer of the court. I shall close what L
have to say on this question, by observing, that though
a creditor of the late nabob, T'am not at present, in the
smallest degree, interested in this bond. The verdict
of .a British jury having .pronounced it to be a forgery,
even the semblance of validity is for ever gone, and
by its validity only could my interests be affected.
Though the verdict has not had the aid of judgment,
its propriety “has not been questioned by the defend-
ants themselves, and, by not praying a new trial, which
might have been granted, they have acknowledged
its justice. The punishment due to the crime of
forgery. may, perhaps, be pardoned, but no, pardon
can stamp a value on the bond; that will for ever
remain attainted, and, I may ventuve tosay, an useless
paper; for the commissioners in England, with whom
the final decision rests on .all the Carnatic claims, will
unquestionably hold. the trial by jury, that great pal-
ladium of our liberties, in too much veneration to
allow the opinions of any individuals here to be put
in competition .with the verdict of twelve men upon
 their oaths; nor-would it, I apprehend, be suffered by
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parliament, to whom they undoubtedly are account-
able. The quotation from my letter will therefore, T
trust, miss its evident aim—to cast on my opinion, if
I should venture to give one, the imputation of
interest. But I am too well known in this settlement
to have my integrity brought in question. Iam not
now interested in the fate of this bond, nor was I from
the moment the justice of the 'verdict was acknow-
ledged, by neither moving for a new trial, nor in arrest
of judgment. T am neither interested in it myself,

nor is any one connected with me, -

_ THIRD QUESTION.

~ Asto the'question, whether the prayer of Mr. Marsh
for-an order. from 'this court to print the late trials,
ought to be granted ornot: -« = SR
1 think that as the trials are not before' the court,
but before the court of oyer and terminer and gaol
delivery, the application would more properly be made
to'that court—but perhaps, as'this -1s'not éqdestion
of law, and my lord chief justice, - before.- whom . the
men were tried, presides here, we may, placing a per-
fect confidence in Mr. Marsh’s ability and coyrectness
give him leave to print them ; but what end will" our
permission answer, if there exists any where within
the settelment, a power to controul the liberty of'the
press?—He has already applied to the chief secretary
of government for leave to publish them, and has re-
ceived for answer that it is not thought expedient—
and nothing more, no reason given why it should not
be printed—but it sometimes is not convenient to as-
sign reasons. The chief secretary. could not. have said
that the government of this settlement have power to

revive the act of Charles IL for restraining the liberty

of the press. The act, after two revivals, expired about
one hundred. years ago,and all the efforts of King Wil-
Liam, thatgreatfavourite of the nation,werenotsufficient

v
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to prevail on parliament to revive it again. Parliament
knew.too well the value of a free press to putit under
any other restriction, than that already imposed on it
by the law of libels. The chief secretary might perhaps
have said that governmeunt had been for many years
in the exercise of a power to restrain the press; by

prohibiting the publication of any thing that may
create private uneasiness, or public ferment; and that

the settlement had so long acquiesced in the assump-
tion of this power, that it had grown into a right,
which they now thought proper to exercise, allowing
for a moment that the acquiescence of the settlement
for twenty Jr twenty-live years past (for beyond that
period, there was no press at Madrgs) could con-
ersuch a right. It was limited to the newspapers,

and never extended nor meantto be extended, to-

the length to which it would now be carried. Inthe

case of the king against Paupiah and others, many.
years ago, for a conspiracy against Mr. David Hali-

bruton, no such right was pretended to, that trial was
printed and published at Madras, and no "objection

whatsoever made to it on the part of government,

even though -the governor and council 'We”l‘gwt‘lf'fér‘j
judges of oyer and terminer, and formed the court

before whom. the defendants were tried; they were

not lawyers, and were therefore liable to errors in

judgment, which they might not have wished to have

exposed to the observation of the public, but no ob-
jeeléion whatever was made. The other day at.'Cal.
cutta, the. trial of -Mr. Tucker for an assault: ‘on

a married lady, with intent to commit a rape,

was printed and published at Bombay ; .all’ the trials

of consequence are printed in the public papers, many

have appeared in the ~public’ papers of ‘Bengal, and

some have lately appeared in our own way, why then

object to a publication of ‘the late trial ? are the cha-

vacters and conduct of the men tried, like o lady’s
fame, too sacred to be mentioned, or are the public
less interested -in being acquainted with the circums
stances, which came out on their trials, than ;the;_
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were in those which have at various times already

~appeared? Nothing of this kind could possibly be
the cause of refusing to let those trials be made pub-

Jic; we must therefore look to something else.  Per-
haps to an apprehension of improper interference in
the suits of other men---approaching, nay, possibly
amounting to maintenance, * an offence,  (as Black-"
‘¢ stone informs us, 4 Com. 134) against public jus-
‘< tice, as:it keeps alive strife and contention, and
~perverts the remedial process of the law into: an
-engine of oppression, and therefore, by the Roman
law, it was a epecies of the crimen falsi to enter
into any confederacy, or to do any act to support
another’s law suit by money, witness, or patronage.”
The excellent lawyer and upright judge, who quitted
us last October, noticed a similar imprudence in the
case of Abbot v. Hussam ul Mulk, and pronounced it
from the Bench to be maintenance. o

If then the secret reason of thinking it inexpedient to
permit the publication of these trials, was to pre-
vent the exposure of their falling a second time into
the same error, it was certainly prudent; but more
prudence would have been shewn if'they would have
taken the blunt hint of Sir Henry Gwillim, and avoid-
ed the error aitogether. I was for three and twenty
years a confidential servant of the company under
tuis government, and feel an habitual leaning to-
wards them; Iam not, therefore, inclined to impute

~any thing tothem but imprudence, but imprudent,

IF'am afraid, they have been, in taking any part in a
cauge which seemed tocall on them for a steady and
determined neutrality ; and had I still been their at-

© torney general, thisis the conduct I should have ad-

vised; all this however may soon be overlooked and-

forgoiten, if the error be'not further repeated. But-

the unauthorized restriction of the press.cannot be so

easily passed over; it is the dearest privilege to a

British sunjert; the best and surest protection of his

hiberties; the greatest check on the extension of cu-
(4
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‘thority, ‘fo which we are all naturally inclined: it is
the best security ‘we have for the  pure administra-
tion of the laws we live-under, and for keeping unpol-
luted by undue influence, or arbitrary decision the sa-
cred seats of justice. Mr. Marsh, has therefore my
leave, as farasit canavail him, to publish these trials.
But my leave is comparatively of little value.. By the
constitution of the court, my lord chief justice at pre-
sent possesses a double or -casting voice; whether,
therefore, Mr. Marsh-shall, orshall not have the léave
of the court, depends on the inclination of his
lordship’s mind. .~ S e

THE END.
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